
The order of agenda items listed above are approximate and intended as a guideline for the City Council. 
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk, 

448 E. 1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, 719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 

1 

 

 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
City Council Chambers 

448 East 1st Street, Room 190 
City of Salida, Colorado 

Tuesday June 19, 2018 6:00 p.m. 

 
The City Council may take action on any of the following agenda items as presented or modified prior 

to or during the meeting, and items necessary or convenient to effectuate the agenda items. 

I. REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & ROLL CALL – Led by Mayor PT Wood 

III. CORRESPONDENCE & REPORTS  

a. Chaffee County Emergency Telephone Service Authority Report for April 30, 2018 

IV. PRESENTATION 

a) Chaffee County Economic Development Corp. (Wendell Pryor) 

V. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION – 3-minute time limit. Citizen participation is for items not on the 

agenda and for agenda items that are not scheduled public hearings. 

 
VI. SCHEDULED ITEMS 

1. Consent Agenda – (Lynda Travis) 
a) Approval of Agenda 

b) Approval of Meeting Minutes-June 05, 2018 

c) Approving a Sanitary Sewer Extension Agreement for Crossroads Village Subdivision in Poncha 

Springs  

d) Approving Dominion Voting Equipment Rental Agreement 

e) Scout Hut Final Settlement with LM Kersting Construction Company  

Events: 

f) Crest Crank -  September 16, 2018 (Fee Waiver Request & Use of Riverside Park)  
 

2. Special Event Liquor Permit -A Church 419 D Street-June 23, 2018-6pm-11pm   

 

3. Resolution 2018-30 Recreation Advisory Board Appointments (Theresa Casey) 

 

4. Resolution 2018-31 Updating Short Term Rental Business License Fee Schedule (Larry Lorentzen) 

 

5. Resolution 2018-32 Distribution of Sales Tax Ballot Question (Larry Lorentzen) 

 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 1 of 135



The order of agenda items listed above are approximate and intended as a guideline for the City Council. 
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk, 

448 E. 1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, 719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 

2 

6. Resolution 2018-33 Approval of Memorandum of Understanding with Community Builders

Regarding Highway 50 Corridor Plan (Glen Van Nimwegen)

7. Resolution 2018-34 Approving Executive Search Services Agreement with

BCG Consulting Group

8. Resolution 2018-35 Terminating Larry Lorentzen as City Administrator for the City of Salida

9. Administrator/Deputy City Clerk Reports

a) City Administrator Report – Larry Lorentzen

b) Finance Director-Jodi McClurkin

c) Deputy City Clerk – Lynda Travis

10. Elected Official Reports

a) City Clerk – Alisa Pappenfort

b) City Treasurer – Carol Johnson

c) City Council – Kasper, Bowers, Brown-Kovacic, Granzella, Critelli, and Shore.

d) Mayor – PT Wood

VII. NEW BUSINESS

VIII. OLD BUSINESS

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION

For the purpose of discussing personnel matters, under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f)(I).

For the purpose of a conference with attorneys for the City, for the purposes of receiving legal advice on 

specific legal questions, under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b).  

X. REPORT/DISCUSSION

XI. ADJOURN -

[SEAL] 

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk Mayor PT Wood 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 2 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 3 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 4 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 5 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 6 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 7 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 8 of 135



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                               Meeting Date: June 19, 2018: 
  
    
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. - 1.  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

Lynda Travis  

  

    

 
 

ITEM:    
Consent Agenda 
BACKGROUND: 
I. SCHEDULED ITEMS 

1. Consent Agenda – (Lynda Travis) 
a) Approval of Agenda 
b) Approval of Meeting Minutes-June 05, 2018 
c) Approving a Sanitary Sewer Extension Agreement for Crossroads Village Subdivision in Poncha 

Springs  
d) Approving Dominion Voting Equipment Rental Agreement 
e) Scout Hut Final Settlement with LM Kersting Construction Company  
 
Events: 

f) Crest Crank -  September 16, 2018 (Fee Waiver Request & Use of Riverside Park)  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  AND/ OR FISCAL NOTE: 
Elected Officials, 
Events: 
Crest Crank is requesting a Fee Waiver Request for the Park Application B Fees and use of 
Riverside Park.  Total fees assessed are listed in Park Application B and are $250: 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends Council approve the Consent Agenda.   
 
There are fiscal implications to the above listed Consent Agenda.  Approving the Consent Agenda 
would cost $250 for the fee waiver request submitted for Crest Crank. 

 
 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 

A Council Member should “Motion to combine and approve the items on the Consent 
Agenda.” Followed by a second and a roll call or voice vote. 

 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 9 of 135



The order of agenda items listed above are approximate and intended as a guideline for the City Council. 
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk, 

448 E. 1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, 719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 

1 
 

 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
City Council Chambers 

448 East 1st Street, Room 190 
City of Salida, Colorado 

Tuesday June 05, 2018 6:00 p.m. 
 

The City Council may take action on any of the following agenda items as presented or modified prior 
to or during the meeting, and items necessary or convenient to effectuate the agenda items. 

I. REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & ROLL CALL – Led by Mayor PT Wood 

Councilmen present:  Harald Kasper, Cheryl Brown-Kovacic, Mike Bowers, Dan Shore, Rusty Granzella 
and Justin Critelli.  Mayor PT Wood arrived at 6:10 pm. 

Appointed officials present: City Clerk Alisa Pappenfort and City Treasurer Carol Johnson. 

Staff present:  Interim City Attorney Geoff Wilson, City Planner Kristi Jefferson, City Administrator Larry 
Lorentzen, Finance Director Jodi McClurkin and Deputy City Clerk Lynda Travis. 

III. CORRESPONDENCE & REPORTS  

a. Salida Golf Course Annual Report (submitted by Russell Johnson) 

 Brown-Kovacic clarified with staff that all questions regarding reports could be forwarded to the Deputy 
City Clerk who would then forward the information to the appropriate party. 

IV. PRESENTATION 

a. Colorado Creative Industries in Governor’s Office of Economic Development, Space to Create 
(Margaret Hunt) 

Rescheduled at the request of the presenter to the next Regular Meeting. 

b. Deer Discussion with Colorado Parks & Wildlife (Jim Aragon) 

Aragon presented regarding deer management for the Salida area. 

c. Community Funding Request for Plastic Bags Committee (Deborah Fields) 

Fields, from the Salida Business Alliance, presented regarding Sustainable Salida Initiative and their 
efforts to rid Salida of plastic bags. 

 

 

 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 10 of 135



The order of agenda items listed above are approximate and intended as a guideline for the City Council. 
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk, 

448 E. 1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, 719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 

2 
 

 

V. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION – 3-minute time limit. Citizen participation is for items not on the 
agenda and for agenda items that are not scheduled public hearings. 
 
Steve Ellis, Tom Trujillo and Brenda Wazaluski of Colorado, spoke regarding Colorado Wildfire 
Academy. 
 
Lornie Lowry, of Salida, asked City Council to repeal Ordinance 2018-04. 
 
Jim LiVecchi of Salida, stated he wished there were more public meetings and involvement with the 
community regarding the Ordinance 2018-04.  He further stated the ballot question resolutions were in 
violation of Open Meetings laws and requested they be removed from the agenda. 
 
Monika Griesenbeck of Salida, requested City Council repeal Ordinance 2018-04.  She suggested 
further review of the impacts and stated the project would fundamentally change the character of Salida.  
She urged City Council to listen to the persons who signed the referendum petition. 
 
Nicole (last name?) of Salida, spoke in favor of Ordinance 2018-04.  She provided City Council a 
document with 78 signatures of business owners who signed in support of the Salida Crossing project. 
 
Rob Gartzman of Salida, spoke in favor of Ordinance 2018-04.  He detailed how the lack of affordable 
housing is adversely impacting local businesses including those of his family’s.   
 
Ken Matthews of Salida, spoke in favor of Salida Crossings development. 
 

VI. SCHEDULED ITEMS 
1. Consent Agenda – (Lynda Travis) 

a) Approval of Agenda 
b) Approval of Meeting Minutes-May 22, 2018 
c) Salida Arts Festival at Centennial Park, June 30-July 1, 2018 (Jerry Scavezze) 
 Amplified Sound Permit 
 Electricity Use  

d) FIBArk Festival June 12-June 17, 2018 
 Special Event Permit 
 Use of Riverside Park 

Granzella motioned to combine and approve the Consent Agenda with exception to the 05.22.2018 
Minutes.  Critelli seconded the motion.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 

2. Resolution 2018-23 Planning Commission Appointments (Glen Van Nimwegen) 

Jefferson provided background information.   
 
Kasper made a motion to approve Resolution 2018-23, a resolution of the City Council for the City 
of Salida, Colorado approving the following appointments to the Planning Commission: Giff 
Kriebel as an alternate member with a term to expire June 7, 2020 and Linda Eiler as an alternate 
member with a term to expire March 21, 2020.  Shore seconded the motion.  With all in favor, 
THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 11 of 135



The order of agenda items listed above are approximate and intended as a guideline for the City Council. 
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk, 

448 E. 1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, 719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 

3 
 

 

3. Ordinance 2018-09 Approving an Exchange of Real Property between the City of Salida and SSG 
Holdings, LLC, Second Reading & Public Hearing (Nina Petraro) 
(Passed First Reading during May 22, 2018 Regular Meeting) 
 
Lorentzen provided background information. 
 
Brown-Kovacic mentioned a clerical error within the packet.  Specific error mentioned: 
Pg. 50 states “the County would receive a 3.85-acre parcel adjacent to and north of their Woodlawn 
Cemetery and the county will receive a 1.75-acre parcel between County Road 108…”  Brown-Kovacic 
stated the second “county” should be replaced with “City.” 
 
Wilson mentioned a clerical error within the packet.  Specific error mentioned: 
Pg. 50 states “This Ordinance passed on 1st Reading at the meeting of July 22, 2018” but the July 22 
meeting has not yet come to pass. 
 
Shore moved to adopt Ordinance 2018-09 approving an exchange of real property between the 
City of Salida and SSG Holdings, LLC.  Kasper seconded the motion.  With all in favor, THE 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
4. Resolution 2018-24 Approval of the Revocable License Agreement for Downtown Street Patios; 

Setting Rates and Authorizing Administrator (Glen Van Nimwegen) 
 

Jefferson provided background information. 
 
Granzella motioned to approve Resolution No. 2018-24, approving the revocable license agreement 
for downtown street patios, setting the lease rates for said patios at $3 per square foot per year and 
authorizing the City Administrator to approve future agreements and renewals.  Critelli seconded 
the motion.   
 
Kasper motioned to amend Resolution 2018-24 to raise the rent from $3 to $4 per square foot per 
year.  Bowers seconded the motion.  A voice vote was taken and with all in favor, the “ayes” 
carried it.   
 
Original Motion was then brought forth.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 

5. Reconsideration of Ordinance 2018-04 Salida Crossing Planned Development (Vote to Repeal or to 
Not Repeal) (Lynda Travis) 
 
Travis provided background information. 
 
Wood provided background information including stating the Ordinance has previously gone through 
public hearings and was on tonight’s agenda for affirming or not affirming the ordinance.  He stated if 
the ordinance is affirmed then it will then go to the voters via a special election and if it is not reaffirmed 
then the ordinance will not take effect. 
 
Bowers questioned whether petitioner signers would be able to speak to the matter.  Wood stated he is 
not opposed to that but conferred to Wilson.  Wilson stated it was within the mayor’s right to take more 
public comments but that this stage of the process is perfunctory.  Wood then stated tonight would not be 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 12 of 135



The order of agenda items listed above are approximate and intended as a guideline for the City Council. 
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk, 

448 E. 1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, 719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 

4 
 

 

a good time to have a public hearing for the petition signers as the meeting was not noticed as such.  
Bowers asked whether he would consider it for the future.  Wood stated he felt the time before the 
special election would allow for public input.   
 
Bowers then asked if the petition signers would be able to participate in the ballot language process.  
Wood stated the ballot language would be brought forthlater in the meeting and reminded City Council 
the main matter before them was to affirm or not affirm the Ordinance.   
 
Critelli stated a mail in ballot is the best way to get the public involved.  He stated other methods were 
less effective.  Wood concurred. 
 
Granzella stated he sees the two top priorities as affordable housing and maintaining small town 
character of Salida.   He then stated the Salida Crossing has made some good changes throughout the 
process.  He concluded he has changed his vote, he now supports the project and will turn the vote over 
to the voters.  He also gave an update on CDOT involvement with the traffic issue.  He then offered to 
be available by phone for his constituents if they desired to discuss the matter.  
 
Brown-Kovacic stated the recent Community Development survey showed the top concerns are 
providing housing to a wide variety of economic brackets and maintaining small town character.  She 
further stated she hoped the Highway 50 corridor grant work with Community Builders would be helpful 
with the housing problem.   
 
Brown-Kovacic stated going to a special election might be a good idea in that the citizens can voice their 
opinion in the matter.  She then explained the project is within the scope of the current code.  She states 
there are things she likes and does not like about the project but believes it is provided a mixed income 
solution to a lot of people without a place to live.  She then stated Salida does not have a lot to work 
with.  She then stated she likes that 30 units are going to persons who live and work in our community. 
 
Kasper stated he agrees with Cheryl that height is the critical issue.  He then said he does not believe the 
project takes away from the small town feel of Salida.  He stated people give the “small town” feel more 
so than a building does.  He then addressed the petition signors and the petitioners Hal Brown and James 
LiVecchi.  Granzella called a Point of Order.  Wood agreed.  Kasper concluded by addressing the 
citizens of Salida. 
 
Shore discussed managing change.  He stated it is easier to be against everything than to support 
something.  He stated he continues to be for something and he continues to support Salida Crossing.  He 
then provided clarification regarding misinformation he says might be in the public regarding 
precedence with the project and the Highway 50 overlay.  He stated the City is in a good position to 
move forward since they have recently received a grant to improve Highway 50.  He concluded by 
urging citizens to make their decisions based on facts on not based on fear.   
 
Bowers spoke against the ordinance.  He stated there are some people who want to change Salida for the 
worse including disobeying the laws.  He stated the issues with the project are height, density and 
obscuring of a person’s mountain views.  He stated fire dangers, traffic, etc. also need to be considered.  
He stated he maintains his position on the ordinance and stated he is not opposed to affordable housing.  
He gave an example of another project that was supposed to be affordable housing but did not end up 
that way and stated he does not agree that Salida does not have any locations for sprawl.  He provided 
examples.  He concluded by stating he supports the laws and that he votes to repeal the ordinance. 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 13 of 135



The order of agenda items listed above are approximate and intended as a guideline for the City Council. 
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk, 

448 E. 1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, 719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 

5 
 

 

 
Critelli provided examples of times in the past when Salida had to address change.  Specific example he 
gave involved when the area transitioned from horse to motor vehicle.   
 
Bowers motions to repeal Ordinance 2018-04.  Granzella seconded the motion.  A Roll call vote 
was taken.  Bowers voted in favor of the motion.  Critelli, Granzella, Brown-Kovacic, Kasper and 
Shore had the dissenting votes.  With the majority voting against the motion, THE MOTION 
FAILED. 

 
6. Resolution 2018-25 Setting a Special Mail Ballot Election regarding Referendum on Ordinance 

2018-04 (Lynda Travis) 
 

Travis provided background information. 
 
Critelli moved to adopt Resolution 2018-25, a motion of the City Council of the City of Salida, 
setting a special mail ballot election to be held on September 25, 2018, regarding the referendum 
on Ordinance 2018-04.  Brown-Kovacic seconded the motion.  In a 5:1 roll call vote, THE 
MOTION CARRIED.  Bowers had the dissenting vote.  
 

7. Resolution 2018-26 Setting Ballot Question for Senate Bill 152 Authorizing the City to provide 
Cable Television Telecommunications and/or High-Speed Internet (Lynda Travis) 

 
Wilson provided background information. 
 
Shore motioned to adopt Resolution 2018-26 submitting to the eligible electors of the City, at the 
Special Election to be held on September 25, 2018, the question of whether the City should be 
authorized to provide high-speed internet, telecommunications services, and/or cable television 
services either directly or indirectly with public or private sector partners.  Brown-Kovacic 
seconded.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 

8. Resolution 2018-27 Submitting Ballot Question whether to Change the position of City Clerk to be 
appointed rather than elected (Larry Lorentzen) 

 
Lorentzen provided background information. 
 
Critelli moved to adopt Resolution 2018-27 submitting to the eligible electors of the City, at the 
Special Election to be held on September 25, 2018 the question of whether to change the office of 
City Clerk to be an appointed rather than elected position.  Bowers seconded the motion.  With all 
in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 

9. Resolution 2018-28 Submitting Ballot Question whether to change the position of City Treasurer 
to be appointed rather than elected (Lynda Travis) 

 
Granzella moved to adopt Resolution 2018-28 submitting to the eligible electors of the City, at the 
Special Election to be held on September 25, 2018 the question of whether to change the office of 
City Treasurer to be an appointed rather than an elected position.  Bowers seconded.  With all in 
favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 14 of 135



The order of agenda items listed above are approximate and intended as a guideline for the City Council. 
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk, 

448 E. 1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, 719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 

6 
 

 

10. Resolution 2018-29 Colorado State Investment Pool (CSIP) (Jodi McClurkin) 

McClurkin provided background information. 
 
Granzella motioned to adopt Resolution 2018-29 approving participation in the Colorado Statewide 
Investment Pool (CSIP) and authorizing the Mayor to execute the same.  Brown-Kovacic seconded.  
With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 
11. Resolution 2018-30 Recreation Advisory Board Appointments (Lynda Travis) 
(Continued to Next Regular Meeting to be held June 19, 2018) 
 
Brown-Kovacic motioned to continue Resolution 2018-30 to the next regular meeting to be held on 
June 19, 2018.  Granzella seconded.  With all in favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 
12. Administrator/Deputy City Clerk Reports 

a) City Administrator Report – Larry Lorentzen 
 Wendell Pryor with Economic Development Corporation to present at next regular meeting. 
 Inclusionary Housing Ordinance will be brought to next regular meeting. 
 Ordinance amending the subdivision code will be brought to next regular meeting. 

b) Finance Director-Jodi McClurkin 
 Pay by phone for utilities is now available through the City.  Informational brochures were 

disseminated to City Council. 
c) Deputy City Clerk – Lynda Travis 

 
13. Elected Official Reports 

a) City Clerk – Alisa Pappenfort 
b) City Treasurer – Carol Johnson 
c) City Council – Kasper, Bowers, Brown-Kovacic, Granzella, Critelli, and Shore. 
 Granzella praised Public Works for the recent overlay work they completed. 
 Shore updated City Council on UUACOG. 

d) Mayor – PT Wood 
 It was reported that Interim City Attorney, Geoff Wilson, was presented with the Sue O’Brien 

Award by the Colorado Freedom of Information Coalition. 
 Praise was given for two alleys off F street being completed. 
 Letter of Resignation received from Mr. Lorentzen.  Mayor to meet with him to discuss the 

document. 
VII. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
For a conference with the City Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions under 
C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b). 
 
For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing strategy 
for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators, under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e). 
 
For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) and not involving: any specific employees 
who have requested discussion of the matter in open session; any member of this body or any elected official; the 
appointment of any person to fill an office of this body or of an elected official; or personnel policies that do not 
require the discussion of matters personal to particular employees. 
 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 15 of 135



The order of agenda items listed above are approximate and intended as a guideline for the City Council. 
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk, 

448 E. 1st Street, Ste. 112, Salida, CO 81201, 719-530-2630 at least 48 hours in advance. 

7 
 

 

For consideration of documents protected by the mandatory nondisclosure provisions of the Open Records Act 
under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(g). 
 
AND THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL DETAILS ARE PROVIDED FOR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES: 
Discussion of personnel matters relating to the City Administrator function and consideration of documents 
privileged under CORA. 
 
Shore motioned to go into executive session for the above stated purposes.  Critelli seconded.  With all in 
favor, THE MOTION CARRIED. 
 
Executive Session Adjourned and meeting reconvened at 8:53 pm.  Mayor Wood announced himself, Interim City 
Attorney and the following council members as present during the executive session: Kasper, Brown-Kovacic, 
Shore, Bowers, Critelli and Granzella. 
 
Wood asked persons present to state any concerns they had regarding the executive session.  No concerns were 
expressed.   
 
Granzella motioned to continue the meeting to no later than 9:30 pm.  Critelli seconded.  A voice vote was 
taken and the “ayes” carried it.   
 
Wood mentioned 3 items that need a decision: 
1-Will City Council have City Administrator Lorentzen stay for the next two weeks to allow time to find an interim 
City Administrator? 
Granzella motioned City Administrator stay another 2 weeks.  Kasper seconded.  A voice vote was taken and 
the “ayes” carried it. 
2-Discussion of who will be the interim city administrator. 
3-What will exit package be for Lorentzen. 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
Critelli motioned to put forth a ballot issue on the September 25, 2018 special election of whether to allow 
transfers of retail marijuana business licenses. 
 
It was decided that specific language would be brought back for consideration on the ballot. 
 
IX. OLD BUSINESS 
Shore requested a Palmer Street right of way update.  Lorentzen provided the update. 
 
Brown-Kovacic requested an update on solar panel prices.  McClurkin provided an update. 
 
Granzella requested a resolution or ordinance making a settlement mandatory in any sort of settlement case.   
 
X. ADJOURN -9:03 pm 

 
[SEAL] 

 
 
 
 

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk Mayor PT Wood 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 16 of 135



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: June 19, 2018: 

AGENDA ITEM NO. ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Public Works 

PRESENTED BY: 

 David Lady 

ITEM:  
Council Action Approving a Sanitary Sewer Extension Agreement for Crossroads Village 
Subdivision in Poncha Springs  
BACKGROUND: 
RMBC Properties, LLC, requested a Subdivision Improvements Agreement from the Town of 
Poncha Springs to develop Crossroads Village Subdivision, located within the current corporate 
boundaries of the Town of Poncha Springs and within Salida’s Wastewater Service Area. 
In accordance with the Salida and Poncha Springs Intergovernmental Agreement for Transfer of 
Sewer System dated April 6, 2010 (“System IGA”), Salida operates, maintains, and expands its 
sewer system to accommodate planned growth and development within Poncha Springs planning 
and zoning jurisdiction.   
In accordance with the Salida and Poncha Springs Intergovernmental Agreement for Provision of 
Sewer Services dated April 6, 2010 (“Service IGA”), Poncha Springs shall not record any final plat 
for any development within Poncha Springs until the Town has received written confirmation from 
Salida that the developer has executed a line extension agreement or line connection agreement 
with Salida or has otherwise applied for and been granted service per the Salida Municipal Code. 
On June 1, 2018, Poncha Springs town trustees approved the proposed development. The City of 
Salida has reviewed plans, collection system capacity, and associated impacts. Comments have 
been addressed. 
The Developer has requested to complete a sewer extension agreement as required for the 
construction of a public sanitary sewer main. The proposed main consists of 835 linear feet of 8-
inch sewer line, manholes, and associated facilities.  City of Salida legal counsel has reviewed the 
Sewer Line Extension and Connection Agreement as well as the IGA.  Their comments have been 
incorporated.   
FISCAL NOTE: 
There are no budget implications with the approval of the agreement. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of the Sanitary Sewer Extension Agreement for Crossroads Village 
Subdivision in Poncha Springs. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

A Council person should make a motion to “combine and approve the items on the consent 
agenda”. 

Followed by a second and then a voice vote. 

VI.1.d. Consent Agenda

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 17 of 135



Council Action Approving a Sewer Extension and Connection Agreement for 
Crossroads Village Subdivision in Poncha Springs 

Index Sheet 

1. Sewer Line Extension and Connection Agreement

1.1. Exhibit A – Property Description

1.2. Exhibit B – City of Salida Public Improvements

1.3. Exhibit C – Town of Poncha Springs Development Agreement

1.3.1. Exhibit A – Legal Description of the Property 

1.3.2. Exhibit B – Improvements Quantities and Cost Estimates 

1.3.3. Exhibit C – Engineering Plans 

1.3.4. Exhibit D – Form of Partial Release of Credit 

1.3.5. Exhibit E – Performance/Warranty Bond 

1.4. Exhibit D – Warranty Bond 

1.5. Exhibit E – City of Salida Fee Schedule 

1.6. Exhibit F – Construction Schedule 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 18 of 135



SEWER LINE EXTENSION AND CONNECTION AGREEMENT 
(Crossroads Village, LLC) 

THIS SEWER LINE EXTENSIO AND CONNECTION AGREEMENT (the 
"Agreement") is made and entered into this _ _  day of _ _ _ _ _ _ _    2018, by and 
between the CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, a Colorado statutory city (''Salida"), and 
Crossroads Village, LLC ("Developer") (each a "Party" and together the ·'Parties"). 

Section t - Recitals 
I.I The Developer contends that it is the fee title owner of certain lands known as the 

"Crossroads Village Subdivision" and more particularly described on attached Exhibit A 
(the "Property"). 

1.2 The Property is located within the current corporate boundaries of the Town of Poncha 
Springs ("Poncha Springs" or "Town") and within Salida's Wastewater Service Plan Area 
as defined in Section 13-2-20 of the Salida Municipal Code. 

1.3 Salida provides sewer service in Poncha Springs pursuant to and in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of two intergovernmental agreements between Salida and Poncha 
Springs: the Intergovernmental Agreement for Transfer of Sewer System dated April 6. 
2010 ("System IGA"), and the Intergovernmental Agreement for Provision of Sewer 
Services dated April 6, 2010 ("Service TGA"). 

1.4 In accordance with the Poncha Springs Land Use Code, the Developer has submitted a plat 
for the 46-lot Crossroads Village Subdivision and has obtained final plat approval of the 
subdivision by the Town Board. 

1.5 Under the System IGA, Salida operates, maintains, and expands its sewer system to 
accommodate and not inhibit planned growth and development within Poncha Springs's 
planning and zoning jurisdiction. 

1.6 Under the Service IGA, Poncha Springs shall not record any final plat for any development 
within Poncha Springs until the Town has received written confirmation from Salida that 
the developer has executed a line extension agreement or line connection agreement with 
Salida or has otherwise applied for and been granted service per the Salida Municipal Code. 

1.7 The Property currently is not serviced by a Salida sewer line, and the Developer wishes to 
perform all excavations, constructions, installations, connections, and other work 
necessary to extend a sewer main to and through Phase 1 of the Property as shown on 
Exhibit A. 

1.8 The Developer and Salida wish to enter into this Agreement in satisfaction of the 
requirement for an executed extension or line connection agreement under the Service IGA, 
and to provide for Salida's provision of sewer service to Phase l of the Crossroads Village 
Subdivision development. 

00175069-2 
1.

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 19 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 20 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 21 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 22 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 23 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 24 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 25 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 26 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 27 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 28 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 29 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 30 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 31 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 32 of 135



1.1.

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 33 of 135



1.2

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 34 of 135



1.3

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 35 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 36 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 37 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 38 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 39 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 40 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 41 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 42 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 43 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 44 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 45 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 46 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 47 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 48 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 49 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 50 of 135



1.3.1.

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 51 of 135



1.3.2.

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 52 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 53 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 54 of 135



1.3.3.

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 55 of 135



1.3.4.

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 56 of 135



1.3.5.

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 57 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 58 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 59 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 60 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 61 of 135



1.4.

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 62 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 63 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 64 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 65 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 66 of 135



1.5.

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 67 of 135



Exhibit E 
Open Records Policy 
Fee Schedule 

Charges must be paid before service is provided. 
The City does not allow payment terms on copies or other services in conjunction with open 
records requests. 

The Open Records Act allows $.25 charge per page when copies are requested and provided, or the 
actual cost of preparation if the cost is greater. The actual cost may include, but is not limited to, the 
hourly rate paid to the employee conducting the research, cost of the physical medium of the 
document (e.g., tape or diskette) and the cost of retrieving the document from off-site storage for 
inspection. 

The first hour of research and retrieval service is free. 

Cost per hour for research, retrieval and related services after the first hour: 

City Attorney $30/hr 

Assistant City Attorney $30/hr 

Information Services $30/hr 

Department Heads $30/hr 

Supervisor $30/hr 

Non-Supervisory Personnel $20/hr 

City Mapping $5/ black & white ink, paper 24" x 36" 
$10/colored ink, paper 24” x 36” 

DVD - $10 

The Department responsible for the record shall provide it to the Clerk so that the Clerk's office 
may make an appointment with the applicant for inspection within the time frame required. 

Revised July 2014 Resolution 2014-41 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 68 of 135



1.6.

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 69 of 135



ID Tas
Mo

Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Notice to Proceed 0 days Wed 5/16/18Wed 5/16/18

2 Material Submittals 10 days Wed 5/16/18Tue 5/29/18

3 Construction Staking 5 days Wed 5/16/18Tue 5/22/18

4 Rough Grade Streets 
& Alleys

5 days Wed 
5/23/18

Tue 5/29/18

5 Sewer Main & Service20 days Wed 5/30/18Tue 6/26/18

6 Water Main & Service15 days Wed 6/27/18Tue 7/17/18

7 Atmos Gas 10 days Wed 7/18/18Tue 7/31/18

8 Xcel Power 10 days Wed 7/18/18Tue 7/31/18

9 Street Lights 5 days Wed 8/1/18 Tue 8/7/18

10 Curb, Gutter & 
Sidewalk

15 days Wed 8/1/18 Tue 8/21/18

11 Parkways & Signs 5 days Wed 8/22/18Tue 8/28/18

12 Base & Pave Streets 15 days Wed 8/29/18Tue 9/18/18

13 Substantial 
Completion

0 days Tue 9/18/18 Tue 9/18/18

5/16

9/18

5/6 5/13 5/20 5/27 6/3 6/10 6/17 6/24 7/1 7/8 7/15 7/22 7/29 8/5 8/12 8/19 8/26 9/2 9/9 9/16 9/23
June July August September

Task
Split
Milestone
Summary

Project Summary
Inactive Task
Inactive Milestone
Inactive Summary

Manual Task
Duration-only
Manual Summary Rollup
Manual Summary

Start-only
Finish-only
External Tasks
External Milestone

Deadline
Progress
Manual Progress

Page 1

Project: RMBC BASELINE
Date: Wed 5/16/18

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 70 of 135



HARDWARE RENTAL, SOFTWARE LICENSE AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  

This Hardware Rental, Software License and Services Agreement (hereafter the “Agreement”) 
dated this 11th day of June 2018 is made by and between the City of Salida, located at 448 E. 1st 
Street, #112, Salida, CO 81201 (hereafter the “Customer”) and Dominion Voting Systems Inc., 
located at 1201 18th Street, Suite 210, Denver, CO 80202 (hereafter “Dominion”). This 
Agreement may refer to Dominion and the Customer together as the “Parties,” or may refer to 
Dominion or the Customer individually as a “Party.” 
 
1.  Composition of Agreement. Exhibit A is attached and incorporated herein by reference and 

forms a part of this Agreement. This Agreement consists of the general terms and conditions 
contained in the following Sections, together with Exhibit A: 

    Exhibit A: Hardware Rental, Services, Pricing and Payment Summary 
 
2.  Definitions. For the purposes of this Agreement, the following are defined terms: 
  

2.1. "Dominion Software" means software licensed by Dominion to the Customer. 
 
 2.2. "Hardware" means Dominion’s proprietary voting system hardware as specified in 

Exhibit A herein. 
  
2.3. "Licensed Software" means the Dominion Software and Third-Party Software, 

collectively, together with any user manuals or other associated documentation as 
described in Section 6 herein. 

 
2.4. “Specifications” means descriptions and data regarding the features, functions and 

performance of the Dominion Software, as set forth in user manuals or other 
applicable documentation provided by Dominion. 

  
3.  Effective Date and Term of Agreement. All rights and obligations under this Agreement 

shall become effective and enforceable only upon the calling of an election.  The payment 
terms of Section 5, to extent of any payments are still due, shall survive any expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.  If no election is called, the Agreement shall be void. 

 
4.  Dominion's Responsibilities. 
 

4.1.  Dominion shall provide the Customer with the licensed rental hardware and software, 
and the services described in Exhibit A. 

 
4.2.  Dominion shall grant to the Customer a non-exclusive, non-transferable, license 

("License") to use the Dominion Software and Hardware provided by Dominion 
pursuant to Section 6 of this Agreement. 

 
5.  Customer's Responsibilities. 

 
5.1.  In consideration for the rental, licenses and services described in this Agreement, 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 71 of 135



Customer shall pay the amounts specified in Exhibit A. Customer is responsible for 
all sales, excise, personal property or other taxes or duties on the amounts paid or 
products or services provided under this Agreement. If Customer is exempt from such 
taxes or duties, Customer shall provide Dominion with a tax exemption certificate. 

 
5.2. Customer shall provide Dominion with physical accommodations reasonably 

required for Dominion to perform its obligations, including premises access, 
electrical power, and data connectivity. 

 
5.3. Customer is solely responsible for assuring all relevant federal, State, and local laws, 

ruling and ordinances are complied with in regard to the use of Dominion’s system 
for any Customer election, including all associated election guidelines and applicable 
election due dates.  Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement to the 
contrary, Customer shall hold Dominion harmless from and against any and all 
claims, demands, damages, injuries, expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees 
and court costs) and liability arising in connection with the Customer’s responsibility 
pursuant to this Section 5. 

 
6. Software and Hardware Rental, License and Use.  
 

6.1. Hardware.  Dominion agrees to rent the Hardware to Customer during the Term as 
described in Exhibit A herein.   

 
6.2. License. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Dominion grants Customer a non-

exclusive, non-transferrable license to use the Software and Hardware solely for the 
Customer’s own internal business purposes.  This License shall only be effective 
during the Term and cannot be transferred or sublicensed. 

 
6.3. No Other Licenses. Other than as expressly set forth in this Agreement, (a) Dominion 

grants no licenses, expressly or by implication, and (b) Dominion’s entering into and 
performing the Agreement will not be deemed to license or assign any intellectual 
property rights of Dominion to Customer or any third party. Without limiting the 
foregoing sentence, Customer agrees to use the Dominion Software outlined in 
Exhibit A herein, and agrees not to use any Dominion Software as a service bureau 
for elections outside the Customer’s jurisdiction and agrees not to reverse engineer 
or otherwise attempt to derive the source code of any Dominion Software. The 
Customer shall have no power to grant sub-licenses for the Software.  Any use of all 
or any portion of the Software not expressly permitted by the terms of this Agreement 
is strictly prohibited. 

 
6.4. Prohibited Acts. The Customer shall not, without the prior written permission of 

Dominion: 
6.4.1. Transfer or copy onto any storage device or hardware or otherwise copy the 

Software in whole or in part except for purposes of system backup; 
6.4.2. Reverse engineer, disassemble, decompile, decipher or analyze the 

Software or Hardware in whole or in part; 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 72 of 135



6.4.3. Alter or modify the Software or Hardware in any way or prepare any 
derivative works of the Software or Hardware; 

6.4.4. Alter, remove or obstruct any copyright or proprietary notices from the 
Software or Hardware, or fail to reproduce the same on any lawful copies 
of the Software. 

 
6.5. Proprietary Rights.   Customer acknowledges and agrees that Dominion owns the 

Dominion Hardware, Dominion Software, all documentation and training materials 
provided by Dominion, the design and configuration of the Dominion Hardware and 
the format, layout, measurements, design and all other technical information (except 
for Customer supplied information such as election information) associated with the 
ballots to be used with the Dominion Hardware.  Customer has the right to use the 
aforementioned items to the extent specified in this Agreement.  Dominion likewise 
owns all patents, trade-marks, copyrights, trade names and other proprietary or 
intellectual property in, or used in connection with, the aforementioned items.  The 
aforementioned items also contain confidential and proprietary trade secrets of 
Dominion which are protected by law and are of substantial value to Dominion. 

 
7. Limited Warranties. 
 
 7.1. Dominion Software and Hardware. Dominion warrants that, during the term of this 

agreement, the Software and Hardware will function in accordance with the 
Specification.  If the Customer believes that the Software or Hardware is not 
functioning substantially in accordance with the Specifications, the Customer shall 
provide Dominion with written notice of the material failure within ten (10) days of 
discovering the material failure, provided that the Customer can reproduce the 
material failure to Dominion.  Dominion shall use reasonable efforts to correct the 
material failure of the Software or Hardware.  The foregoing warranty shall be void 
in the event of the Software or Hardware (i) has been modified by any party other 
than Dominion or its licensors or (ii) has been used by the Customer for purposes 
other than those for which the Software or Hardware was licensed. 

 
7.2. Third-Party Products. The warranties in this Sections 7 do not apply to any Third-

Party Products.  However, to the extent permitted by the manufacturers of Third-
Party Products, Dominion shall pass through to the Customer all warranties such 
manufacturers make to Dominion regarding the operation of such Third-Party 
Products. 

 
7.3. NO OTHER WARRANTIES.  DOMINION DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER 

WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS WHETHER WRITTEN, ORAL, 
EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND 
ANY WARRANTY BASED ON A COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF 
PERFORMANCE OR USAGE OF TRADE.  

 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 73 of 135



8. Indemnification.  To the extent permitted by law, each Party to this Agreement shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other Party and its officers, directors, agents, 
employees, and owners from and against any and all demands, claims, damages to persons 
or property, losses, and liabilities, including reasonable attorneys' fees (collectively, 
"Claims"), arising out of or caused by the indemnifying party's gross negligence or willful 
misconduct in connection with the services contemplated by this Agreement.  In addition, to 
the extent permitted by law, Customer shall indemnify and hold harmless Dominion from 
any third party claims arising from, or alleged to arise from, Customer's failure to operate 
properly the Software and Hardware licensed under this Agreement, in the manner 
designated by Dominion. 

 
9. Limitation of Liability. Dominion’s total aggregate liability for any loss, damage, costs or 

expenses under or in connection with this Agreement, howsoever arising, including without 
limitation, loss, damage, costs or expenses caused by breach of contract, negligence, strict 
liability, breach of statutory or any other duty shall in no circumstances exceed the total 
dollar amount of the Agreement.  Neither party shall be liable for any loss of profits, loss of 
business, loss of data, loss of use or any other indirect, incidental, special or consequential 
loss or damage whatsoever, howsoever arising, incurred by the other party or any third party, 
whether in an action in contract, negligence or other tort, even if the parties or their 
representatives have been advised of the possibility of such damages. 

 
10. Confidential Information.  
 

10.1. For purposes of this Agreement, confidential information ("Confidential 
Information") is defined as those materials, documents, data, and technical 
information, specifications, business information, customer information, or other 
information that the disclosing Party maintains as trade secrets or confidential and 
which are disclosed to a receiving Party in tangible form conspicuously marked as 
"confidential," or with words having similar meaning or which are expressly 
identified in this Subsection 10.1. Confidential Information includes all Dominion 
Software source and object code and written documentation associated therewith. 

 
10.2.  Each Party shall treat the other Party's Confidential Information as confidential within 

their respective organizations.  
 

10.3. Neither Party shall disclose the other Party's Confidential Information to any person 
outside their respective organizations unless disclosure is made in response to, or 
because of, an obligation to any federal, state, or local governmental agency or court 
with appropriate jurisdiction, to any person properly seeking discovery before any 
such agency or court, or as may be required by law.  

 
10.4 Each Party shall be given the ability to defend the confidentiality of its Confidential 

Information to the maximum extent allowable under the law prior to disclosure by 
the other Party of such Confidential Information. 

 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 74 of 135



11. Termination.  If either Party materially breaches this Agreement and does not cure the 
breach within 30 days after receiving written notice of the breach from the non-breaching 
Party, the non-breaching Party may terminate this Agreement as of a termination date 
specified in that notice or in a subsequent notice delivered within the 30-day period. If the 
breach cannot be completely cured within the 30-day period, no default will occur if the Party 
receiving the notice begins curative action within the 30-day period and thereafter proceeds 
with diligence and in good faith to cure the breach as soon as practicable. 
 

12. Notices.  All notices required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be given in writing and 
shall be deemed to have been given when, personally delivered or by nationally recognized 
overnight carrier or mailed, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, addressed to 
the intended recipient as follows: 

   
  If to Dominion: 

Dominion Voting Systems Inc. 
Attn: Office of General Counsel 
1201 18th St, Suite 210 
Denver CO 80202 

   
  If to the Customer: 

Lynda Travis 
Deputy City Clerk 
City of Salida 
448 E. 1st Street, #112,  
Salida, CO 81201 O: 719-530-2630 
Lynda.travis@cityofsalida.com 
 

13. Risk of Loss Insurance, Title. Customer shall bear the entire risk of loss or damage to the 
Hardware and Software after Customer receipt of the Hardware and Software. The 
occurrence of any such loss or damage shall not permit Customer to delay or reduce the 
payment of any fees prescribed under this Agreement. Customer may, at its own expense and 
option, obtain and maintain property and casualty insurance for the Hardware and Software 
against all risks of loss or damage. The amount of such insurance shall not be less than the 
replacement cost of the Hardware and Software. All policies for such insurance shall (i) 
designate Dominion as an additional insured and Dominion and Customer as loss payees, as 
their interests may appear and (ii) contain a provision that entitles Dominion to at least fifteen 
(15) days' written notice prior to cancellation or modification of such insurance policy. 
Customer shall not be relieved of the obligation to reimburse Dominion for the costs 
associated with damage or loss to the Hardware and/or Software by failing to obtain the 
insurance coverage as described above.  Title to the Hardware and Software will remain with 
Dominion and will not pass to the Customer. 

 
14. Assignment and Right to Subcontract. Neither Party may assign its rights, obligations, or 

interests in this Agreement without the written consent of the other Party.  
 
15. Governing Law. This Agreement will be construed under the laws of the State of Colorado, 

and the courts within the State of Colorado shall have jurisdiction for all actions to enforce 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 75 of 135

mailto:Lynda.travis@cityofsalida.com


this Agreement. 
 
16. Survival. The provisions of Sections and Subsections 1, 2, 3, 7, 8, 9, 15, and 18 shall survive 

the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  
 
17. Force Majeure. Should any circumstances beyond the control of Dominion or Customer 

occur that delay or render impossible the performance of any obligation due under this 
Agreement, such obligation will be postponed for the period of any delay resulting from any 
such circumstances, plus a reasonable period to accommodate adjustment to such extension, 
or cancelled if performance has been rendered impossible thereby. Such events may include, 
without limitation, war, acts of terrorism; natural disasters; industry-wide labor disputes; 
acts, laws, rules or regulations of any government or government agency; or other events 
beyond the control of both Dominion and Customer. Neither party shall be liable under this 
Agreement for any loss or damage to the other Party due to such delay or performance 
failures. Notwithstanding the foregoing, both Parties shall use their best efforts to minimize 
the adverse consequences of any such circumstances. 

 
18. Legality and Severability. This Agreement and the Parties' actions under this Agreement 

shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, 
court orders, and applicable governmental agency orders. If any term or provision of this 
Agreement is held to be illegal or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not 
be affected thereby and each term or provision of this Agreement shall be valid and 
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. The Parties agree that any court reviewing 
this Agreement shall reform any illegal or unenforceable provision to carry out the express 
intent of the parties as set forth herein to the fullest extent permitted by law.  

 
19. Waiver. Any failure of a Party to assert any right under this Agreement shall not constitute 

a waiver or a termination of that right, this Agreement, or any provisions herein.  
 
20.  No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Dominion and the Customer agree that this Agreement is 

for the benefit of the parties hereto and is not intended to confer any rights or benefits on any 
third party, and that there are no third-party beneficiaries of this Agreement or any part or 
specific provision of this Agreement, and no third party shall have any right to enforce this 
Agreement or any provision hereof. 

 
21. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and its Exhibits incorporated herein by reference 

constitute the entire agreement, understanding and representations between Dominion and 
the Customer, and supersede and replace all prior agreements, written or oral.  No 
modifications or representations to the Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and 
signed by duly authorized representatives of both the Customer and Dominion, and 
incorporated as an Addendum hereto. 

  

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 76 of 135



 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the 
date first above written. 
 
 
DOMINION VOTING SYSTEMS, INC. 
 
 
        
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 
 
John Poulos       
PRINTED NAME 
 
President & CEO      
TITLE 
 
__________________________________________       
DATE 
  
 
 
CITY OF SALIDA, CO 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 
 
__________________________________________ 
PRINTED NAME 
 
__________________________________________ 
TITLE 
 
__________________________________________ 
DATE 
 
  

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 77 of 135



EXHIBIT A 
HARDWARE RENTAL, SOFTWARE LICENSE AND SERVICES AGREEMENT 

CITY OF SALIDA, CO CITY CLERK 
  

Hardware Rental, Services, Pricing and Payment Summary 

 
 

DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE EXTENSION 
Central Scanning Hardware & Software       

ImageCast Central Includes: 1 $2,000  $2,000  
Canon DR-G1130 high speed document scanner.    

- ImageCast® Central Software including third party Kofax VRS 4.5 software.    
- OptiPlex 9020 All-in-One Series with pre-loaded software    
- One (1) iButton Programmer and (1) iButton Key Switch & Cat5 RJ 45 Cables    

Sub-Total:   $2,000  
EMS Democracy Suite / Adjudication Hardware       

Democracy Suite and  Adjudication Hardware (server and one Adj workstations) 1 $1,000  $1,000  
Sub-Total:   $1,000  

EMS Democracy Suite / Adjudication Software       
Democracy Suite (EMS)and Adjudication Software 1 $1,000  $1,000  

Sub-Total:   $1,000  
Election Services       

Election Database Set Up 1 $2,448  $2,448  
Logic and Accuracy Testing (1 resource 1/2 day)  1 $1,000  $1,000  
Election Day / Night Support (1 resource 1 day) 1 $2,000  $2,000  

Sub-Total:   $5,448  
Total Per Election Cost     $9,448  

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 78 of 135



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                        Meeting Date: June 19, 2018  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

Choose an item.  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Recreation & Aquatic Center 

PRESENTED BY: 

       Lynda Travis 

  

BY:    

 
 

ITEM:    
Council Action Final Settlement 2017 Scout Hut Renovation Project, Project No 2017-002 
BACKGROUND: 
The City began the planning phase of renovating the Scout Hut in 2014.  During the March 7, 2017 
Council Meeting, Council approved Resolution No 2017-11 awarding a construction contract to LM 
Kersting Construction Company for the 2017 Scout Hut Renovation Project in the amount of 
$639,200 with a total project budget of $655,000. 
Due to the scope of work, there were considerable unknowns with respect to the renovation as full 
inspection of structural items would be identified after demolition of existing walls and ceilings.  The 
original approved contingency was primarily used for the concrete resurfacing and repairs to the 
basement floor as well as identified D-log replacements. 
Change Order No 1 utilized the remaining contingency up to the budget amount.  The scope of work 
included repairing and replacing 220sf of rotted logs and placing a 3” slab in the basement to overlay 
the existing to cover all of the plumbing and structural cuts in the floor. 
Change Order No 2 increased the project budget by $32,159.48 as well as added $3,111.22 in 
contingency to complete the project and address any remaining items.  This was approved by City 
Council at the September 19, 2017 meeting via Resolution No 2017-53. 
 
FISCAL NOTE: 
Change Order No 3 increased the project budget by $5,000 and changed the completion date to 
May 1, 2018.  Staff applied and was granted a $5,000 grant (less $644 application and handling 
fee) from the Upper Arkansas Council of Governments (COG) to cover this change. Council 
approved to amend the construction agreement and budget for this project via Resolution 2018-10 
during the February 20, 2018 Council Meeting.  The total construction agreement to LM Kersting 
increased to $691,426.68 with a total project budget of $695,000. 
All work was completed and accepted by the Recreation & Aquatic Center Department on May 2, 
2018 and remained within budget.  The final construction cost was $691,426.68 in which all has 
been paid out with the exception of the 10% retainage, in the amount of $69,142.67, withheld 
pending approval of final settlement by council.  Public Notice of Final Settlement was advertised 
on June 4 & 8, 2018.   
LM Kersting provided excellent quality of work and coordination with the City throughout the project. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
To approve final settlement to LM Kersting Construction Company in the amount of $69,142.67 for 
the 2017 Scout Hut Renovation Project. 
 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 79 of 135



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                        Meeting Date: June 19, 2018  
    
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

Choose an item.  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Recreation & Aquatic Center 

PRESENTED BY: 

       Lynda Travis 

  

BY:    

 
 

 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
A Council person should make a motion to “combine and approve the items on the consent 
agenda.” 
 
Followed by a second and then a voice vote. 

 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 80 of 135



          PUBLIC NOTICE 
NOTICE OF FINAL SETTLEMENT 

 
NOTICE is hereby given by the City Council of the City of Salida, Colorado, 

that final settlement of a contract with LM Kersting Construction Company for the 
2017 Scout Hut Rehabilitation Project will be held at the regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Salida on the 19th day of June, 2018, at City Council 
Chambers, 448 East 1st Street, Salida, Colorado 81201. Payment to contractor is 
scheduled to be released no sooner than June 21, 2018.  
 

Any person co-partnership, association of persons, company or corporation 
that has furnished labor, materials, team hire, sustenance, provisions, provender or 
other supplies used or consumed by the Contractor, or his or her sub-contractors, in 
or about the performance of the work contracted to be performed who has not been 
paid by the Contractor or its subcontractor may file with the City of Salida a 
verified statement of the amount due and unpaid on account of such claim. 
 

Upon receipt of such claim, on or before the date and time of such final 
settlement, the City of Salida shall withhold from all payments to the Contractor 
sufficient funds to insure the payment of said claim.  The City of Salida shall hold 
such funds until the claim has been paid as filed or withdrawn.  Such funds shall not 
be withheld longer than ninety (90) days following the date fixed for final settlement 
unless an action is commenced within that time to enforce such unpaid claims and a 
notice of lis pendens is filed with the City of Salida. 

 
Run dates: 
June 4 and 8, 2018 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 81 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 82 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 83 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 84 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 85 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 86 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 87 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 88 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 89 of 135



 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 90 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 91 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 92 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 93 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 94 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 95 of 135



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: June 19, 2018: 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. - 2.
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

Lynda Travis  

ITEM:
A Church Special Event Permit Request 
BACKGROUND: 
A Church submitted a request for a Special Event Permit for June 23, 2018. 
Since that time, Chaffee County has submitted documents expressing opposition to the pending 
liquor license application. 
For this reason, the A Church request has been placed on the Agenda as a Scheduled Item so that 
City Council may review the matter in more detail. 
To assist in the process, Dan Swallow, from Chaffee County Building Department is here to 
present his understanding of the situation. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  AND/ OR FISCAL NOTE: 
Please see attached memos for additional information. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

N/A 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 96 of 135



Dear Esteemed Mayor and Council, 

Up for your review and approval is a request for an Event Liquor permit for A Church, located at 419 D 
Street.  Our event on June 23rd is a fundraiser for the nonprofit, A Church.  We are a nondenominational 
church focused on creating positive change within our community.  As you may know, we recently 
hosted the FRED Talks for the high school psychology students, the Montessori Play and are holding 
community game nights to encourage interaction in fun between generations and increase 
connectedness within our small town.   

This event is a community dance with a live band that encourages swing dance and country dance.  
Kindle Bustos, Hugh Young, Jan Justis and Jerri Lines provide swing dance lessons several times a month 
in Salida.  Kindle approached us with bringing a band to the church that would be fun to dance to and 
support their dance community.  There will be free swing dance lessons in the hour before the band 
starts to play.  

Please support our efforts to increase connectedness and fun in our special town by approving our 
request for a permit.   

Best Regards, 

Sheree Beddingfield 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 97 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 98 of 135



June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 99 of 135



 
CHAFFEE COUNTY 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
104 Crestone Ave., Room 125 

P.O. Box 699 
Salida, Colorado 81201 

(719) 539-2124    FAX:  (719) 530-9208 
bdepartment@chaffeecounty.org 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:   June 14, 2018 
  
To:   City of Salida City Council 
  Larry Lorentzen, City Administrator 
  Glen VanNimwegen, Community Development Director 
  Lynda Travis, City Clerk 
 
From:  Dan Swallow, Development Director 

   
Subject: 419 D Street Change of Use  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
This morning I noticed that a liquor license hearing notice has been posted at the old Salida First 
Baptist Church building located at 419 D Street in Salida.  On July 19th of 2017 I sent a memo to 
the Community Development Director, Glen VanNimwegen, addressing some building code 
questions regarding this building in particular, with the intent that the Salida Planning 
Commission would consider the code implications for this building in their approval process.  It 
is my understanding that the memo was provided to the planning commission.   
 
In the memo I outlined that if alcohol would be consumed in the building, that the building must 
classified as an A-2 occupancy and that it must be sprinklered if it was over 5,000 square feet.  
Our records indicate that the building is 7,418 square feet (according to plans prepared and 
stamped by Sarah Whittington, Architect).  As such, the building would be required to be fully 
sprinklered with an NFPA 13 fire suppression system before alcohol could be consumed within 
the building pursuant to the International Building Code (IBC) Section 903.2.1.2 and the 
International Fire Code Section 903.2.1.2. 
 
Furthermore, the building is classified as an A-3 occupancy (church) which does not permit the 
consumption of alcohol.  In order for alcohol to legally be consumed within this building, a 
change of use is required to change the occupancy from an A-3 to an A-2.  No change of use 
application has been submitted to the building department.  
 
Additionally, IBC and IFC Sections 903.2.1.2 both require A-2 occupancies with an occupant 
load of 100 or more to be fully sprinklered.  The occupant load of the main floor alone is 213 
according to the approved plans.  There is no fire suppression system installed within this 
building what-so-ever.   

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 100 of 135

mailto:bdepartment@chaffeecounty.org


 
The property owners were made aware on multiple occasions that if alcohol were to be 
consumed in this building, that it would need to be sprinklered.  I find it a bit disingenuous that 
the property owners are now applying for a liquor license after having been made fully aware of 
the sprinkler requirement.  I was concerned at the time the building permit was issued that this 
would become an issue.  I spoke with Sarah Whittington, the owners architect, about this before 
issuing the permit and she assured me that it was going to be used for a church only, and that no 
alcohol would be consumed within the building.  
 
Lastly, final building and fire inspections have not been performed on this building and no 
certificate of occupancy has been issued.  As such, it cannot be legally occupied.  Granting a 
liquor license or special event permit prior to a certificate of occupancy being issued would be 
premature.  
 
Because of the flagrant building and fire code violations that would occur should a liquor license 
be issued for this property; the Chaffee County Building Department is adamantly opposed to 
this application.       

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 101 of 135



CHAFFEE COUNTY 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT  

P.O. Box 699 
Salida, Colorado 81201 

(719) 539-2124    FAX:  (719) 530-9208 
bdepartment@chaffeecounty.org 

         
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date:   July 19, 2017 
  
To:   City of Salida 
  Glen VanNimwegen, Community Development Director 
 
From:  Dan Swallow, Development Director 

   
Subject: 419 D Street Change of Use  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The new owners of the building located at 419 D Street in Salida have applied for a change of 
use. This building was formally used as a church which under the building code is an A-3 
occupancy.  A-3 occupancies are assembly uses intended for worship, recreation, or 
amusement.  Examples of A-3 occupancies include: arcades, art galleries, bowling alleys, 
places of worship, community halls, courtrooms, dance halls, exhibition halls, funeral parlors, 
gymnasiums without spectator seating, indoor tennis courts, lecture halls, museums, and 
pool/billiard parlors.  A-3 occupancies are limited to 12,000 square feet without a fire 
suppression system.  A-3 occupancies do not include assembly uses intended for food and/or 
drink consumption.   
 
It is my understanding that the current owners of this building would like to change the 
occupancy from A-3 to A-2.  A-2 occupancies are assembly uses intended for food and/or drink 
consumption.  Examples of A-2 occupancies include: banquet halls, night clubs, restaurants, 
taverns, and bars.  A-2 occupancies are limited to 5,000 square feet, an occupant load of 99 or 
fewer, and must be located on at the level of exit discharge (grade level) or a fire suppression 
system is required.  The intent behind the more restrictive provisions of A-2 occupancies 
compared to A-3 occupancies revolves around the consumption of alcohol.  Generally speaking, 
building occupants who are consuming alcohol are less aware of their surroundings and less 
capable of self-preservation in event of an incident such as a fire than sober occupants.  
Therefore, the code has more stringent requirements when alcohol consumption is anticipated.   
 
In order for us to determine if a change of use is appropriate for a building we need an accurate 
and detailed floor plan and a code analysis, at a minimum.  For a building and use as complex 
as this one, these documents should be prepared by a Colorado Licensed Architect in 
accordance with State law.  The code analysis should include the occupancy proposed, type of 
construction, allowable vs actual floor areas, address fire protection, an exiting plan, travel 
distance, handicap accessibility, occupant loads, number and type of plumbing fixtures and any 
other information appropriate for the proposed occupancy.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions and how I can help.         

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 102 of 135



MEN

MEETING

OFFICE #2

W

D

3'-4"±

3'-4"

BEDROOM #3

BEDROOM #2

BEDROOM #1

WC
LAV

LAVWC

REF.R

DW

6
'-4

"
6

"
6

'-0
"

9
'-0

"

BATH #1

BATH #2

KITCHEN

CRAWL
SPACE

OFFICE #1

STAGE

MEETING #1

MEETING #2

COFFEE

EXIT

EXIT

LIVING

DINING
STORAGE

MECH.

TOWER

R
A

M
P

 1 
: 1

2
M

A
X.

 S
LO

P
E

SHELF
& ROD

2

EXISTING
POSTS

2

SD

SD

SD

VENT DRYER
TO OUTSIDE

2

OPEN TO STAIRWELL
WELL

LIVING UNIT

NEW STAIRS TO
LOWER UNIT
7 3 4" MAX. RISER
W/ 10" MIN. TREADS

PROVIDE 36" H.
HANDRAIL BOTH SIDES

EXISTING CONCRETE
WALL

4'-0"

UP TO RISERS
TO RAISED FLOOR
7" MAX. RISE 10" MIN.
TREAD

5
'-0

"

EXISTING COLUMNS

EXISTING
STAIRS
& LANDING

NEW POST
RE: STRUCTURAL

EXISTING WINDOWS
TO REMAIN

ALIGN
FINISH
FACE

LC

LC

STOR.

1

1

EXIT EXISTING EXTERIOR
DOOR

SD
CMD

SD
CMD

4
'-2

"

3
'-4

"

PROVIDE 3'-4"± D.
LANDING @ STAIRS

13

1

SANCTUARY

2

1

2

WOMENLOBBY

ELEV.
100'-0"

ELEV.
+15"±

5

4

3

6

7

9

12

8

10

11

1516

16

15

15

17

19

18

20

21

22

26

26

27

27

28

29

30

30

31

32

3334 34

28

23

2

3

35

42" H. GUARDRAIL

3

2

3

10

22

24

25

25

2515

15

15

29

36

14

14

ALIGN
FINISH
FACE

33

4'-0"12'-9"±

2'
-0

"
4

'-0
"

3
'-0

"

36

2'-4"

6
'-6

"
6

'-5
"±

2'-4"

14'-2"15'-9"9'-3"

8
'-7

"
4

'-1
0

"
14

'-0
"

EXIT

ADA
ADA

PIANO

RAMP DETAIL
RE: 7A2

EXIT

15

8'-0"

4
'-0

"

2

DRAWN BY: P.G.
CHECKED BY: S.W.

VICINITY MAP
MAIN LEVEL

FLOOR PLAN
BASEMENT

FLOOR PLAN
CODE ANALYSIS
KEY NOTES

JOB # 16018.82

DATE: 1/23/2018

A1
1 OF 2

2MAIN LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
1
8" = 1'-0"

RE: 

LEGEND

Existing walls

Walls to be removed

New walls

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.1

PROJECT
LOCATION

General Notes

1. Contractor shall verify all dimensions and conditions at job site, if
discrepancies occur, Contractor shall notify Architect before proceeding
with the work.  Dimensions take precedence over drawings.  Drawings
are not to be scaled.

2. All design work and construction work shall conform to all applicable
codes and standards required by Chaffee County and the City of Salida.

3. All mechanical, plumbing, and electrical design and installation shall be
performed by licensed contractors or homeowner in accordance with all
applicable codes and industry standards.  Contractor shall coordinate all
work.

4. Contractor shall protect all existing areas during construction and is
required to replace any areas which are damaged, whether intentionally or
unintentionally, due to new construction.

5. The Contractor shall coordinate all interior finishes with the Owner.

Exterior Light Requirement

1. All exterior lights to be fully shielded per Sec. 16-8-100 City of Salida
Land use Code.

B
L
U

E
 C

O
L
L
A

R
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T
S

4
19

 D
 S

TR
E

E
T

S
A

LI
D

A
, C

0
 8

12
0

1

Lot & Landscaping Requirements

Zoning: Medium Density Residential R-2

Lot Area: 9,300.00 sq.ft.

Density:
Allowed: 1 per 3,125 sq.ft. =

2 Units Allowed
Proposed: 1 Units

Lot Coverage Structures:
Allowed: 40% = 3,720 sq.ft. Max.
Existing: 4,872 sq.ft. = 52%

Lot Coverage Uncovered Parking:
Allowed: 15% = 1,395 sq.ft. Max
Proposed: >340 sq.ft.

Landscaping:
Required: 45% = 4,185 sq.ft. Min.
Proposed: NA

Tree Requirement:
Required: 1 / 800 sq.ft.
Proposed: NA

3BASEMENT LEVEL
FLOOR PLAN
1
8" = 1'-0"

RE: 1A2

2006 International Building Code
2006 International Existing Building Code
Blue Collar Projects- Code Analysis

Scope of Work:
Main Level - Existing Church: Remodeling the exisitng area. Adding in new restrooms and an
ADA ramp for access to the raised floor area.
Basement Level - Change of Use to R-3 Congregate Living. All work will be interior within the
existing building.

I. Occupancy Classification: Chapter 3
Main Level: Existing Occupancy A-3 Places of Religious Worship
Basement Level: Change of Use - R-3 Congregate Living

II. Building Areas
a. Exterior

Main Level: 4,815 sq. ft.
Basement Level: 2,603 sq. ft.

b. Interior
Main Level: 4,513 sq. ft.
Basement Level: 2,350 sq. ft.

III. Type of Construction: Chapter 6
Type V-B : Table 601

a. Exterior wall fire rating: Table 602
Group A:Type V-B at >/= 10'-0" = 0 hour

b. Exterior wall openings: Table 704.8 Note: I = unlimited

IV. General Building Heights and Areas: Chapter 5
a. Allowable area and height: 508.3.2.2/Table 503 Type V-B

Assembly Group: A-3
Allowable area: 6,000 sq. ft.
Allowable height/story: 40'/1 story above grade plane

V.   Means of Egress: Chapter 10
a. Occupant Load: Table 1004.1.1

Basement Level:
Residential:      1800/200 gross =            9 occ.

Main Level:
Lobby:               109/15 gross =         7 occ.
Sanctuary: pews          lin. ft./1.5 =          92 occ.

       ADA 2 occ.
      Upper         365/7 net =                    52 occ.

Stage:                          150/15 net =                  10 occ.
Piano: 1 occ.
Offices:     360/100 gross =             4 occ.
Meeting:     219/15 gross =             15 occ.
Fellowship:                  443/15 gross =             30 occ.

TOTAL Main Level: 213 occupants

b. Exit Access: Section 1014
i. Common path of egress: 1014.3

< 75'-0”
c. Number of Exits: Section 1015/Section 1019

i. Exit doorways required: 1015.1/1019.1
Main Level: 2 exits
Basement: I main exit plus egress windows Re: VI. e. below

i. Door arrangement: 1015.2
Addition: 2 doors > ½ diagonal distance

VI.  2006 IEBC: Basement Change of Use
a. Chapter 9: Change of Occupancy

901.3.1 Partial change: Basement Level
  Proposed Use: R-3 Congregate Living
  Previous Use: A-3  Places of Religious Worship

b. Section 910: Plumbing
i. 2 bathrooms provide with shower, wc, and lavatory

c. Section 912:
912.1.1.1 Change of occupancy without separation
i. Compliance with Chapter 8 (to Chp. 6 & 7)
ii. Separations: provided

Horizontal A-3 to R-3: see floor system diagram 2A2
Vertical A-3 to R-3: 2 hour

Continuity 706.5: from slab below to underside floor above
Vertical R-3 sleeping units: 1 hour

Continuity 708.4: from slab below to underside floor above
d. 912.2.1 Fire sprinkler system:

i. Fire suppression not required per Salida Municipal Code 18-1-30.
ii.Fire alarm: smoked detectors and carbon monoxide detectors provided in required
locations.

e. 912.3 Interior finish: per 2006 IBC Chapter 8
f. 912.4. Means of Egress

i. 912.4.2 Change to equal or lower hazard category: 2006 IBC Chap. 10
1009.3 Stair treads and risers. Ex. 4: R-3: max. riser 7 3 4" and min. tread depth 10"
1019.2 Buildings with one exit #2: R-3 occupancy
1020.1 Vertical exit enclosure Ex. #1: occupant load <10 occ./

1.2 Open to one story below level of exit discharge
1026.2/1026.5 All bedrooms with an egress compliant window and window

well that complies with min. horizontal area of 9' sq. ft. and min. dimension of 36".
Provided with a permanently fixed ladder with a vertical depth > 44" d.

g. 912.5 Heights and Areas
i. 912.5.2 Change to equal or lower hazard category: height and area shall be acceptable

h. 912.6 Exterior wall fire-resistance ratings
i. 912.6.1 Change to equal or lower hazard category. Exterior walls and openings shall be
accepted.

i. 912.7 Enclosure of vertical shafts - Re: 1020.1
j. 912.8 Accessibility

i. Exception: Type B sleeping units are note required in existing buildings

VII. Fire Protection: Chapter 9
a. Fire Suppression

Main Level : Church remodel:

i. 903.2.1.3 Group A-3: not required - <12,000 sq. ft., < 300 occupants, on 
level of discharge.

b. Fire Alarm
i. 907.2.1 Group A: not required - < 300 occupants

VIII. Accessibility: Chapter 11
a. Main Level - Church remodel:

i. existing ADA ramp on main entrance
ii. providing new ADA compliant Men and Women restrooms
iii. adding an interior ADA ramp for access to to the upper floor level

IX.   Plumbing Fixtures: Chapter 29
a. Main Level: Church

i. Minimum number of required fixtures: Table 2902.1
Total Occupant Load: 213 occupants or 107 occ./sex

Women: WC - 1/75 = 107/75 = 2 wc required/ 3 provided
Men: WC - 1/150  = 107/150  = 1 wc required
Women / Men: Lavatory - 1/200 = 1 lavatory required

Service sinks: 1 service sink provided

X.    Energy Compliance: 2006 IECC Zone 6
a. Main Level: existing Church - any exposed cavities will be filled w/ insulation
b. Basement Level: Change of Use to R-3: 101.4.4 - no increase in demand for fossil fuel or

electrical energy
· Walls -Mass wall: adding R-11 insulation
· Windows: min. U- 0.35

KEY NOTES

36" h. 1 12" diameter metal handrail w/ 4"h. rail from ramp for
edge barrier.

12" handrail extension

36"h. 1 12" diameter metal handrail

ADA Women's Restroom RE: 3A2, Plumbing Plan

ADA Men's Restroom RE: 4A2, Plumbing Plan

3 compartment sink in base cabinet RE: Plumbing Plan

Sink unit in base cabinet

Dishwasher

Mop sink

2 x 4 wood stud partition w/ sound insulation - optional.

Raise existing floor w/ 2 x wood sleepers. Provide 3 4"
plywood sub-floor. Sound insulation. RE: 2A2

Expand existing window opening sill for new 3'-0" x 6'-8" exit
door. Provide panic hardware and exit light.

Extend existing sidewalk for min. 48" x 48" concrete landing
at exit door.

New 2'-6" x 6'-8" door.

New 3'-0" x 6'8" door.

New 2'-4" x 6'-8" door.

Provide new exterior landing and stair system. Stair max.
rise = 7'-0" and min. run = 11".

Provide 42" guardrail.

Existing ADA ramp.

Main Entrance.

2 hour separation wall RE: 8A2

Existing separation ceiling assembly RE: 2A2

3'-0" x 6'-8" 1 1
2 hour rated door

2 - 3'-0" x 6'-8" door pair

2 - 2'-6" x 6'-8" closet doors.

Expand existing window sill opening for 3'-6" x 5'-6" SH
egress compliant window. Sill to be < 44" from floor.

Window well that has a min. horizontal area of 9 sq. ft. and a
min dimension of 36" width. Provide a ladder when well is
>44" deep.

Furr out existing exterior wall with 2 x 4 wood stud framing.
Provide min. R-13 insulation.

Sound insulation.

36" x 72" Shower unit

60" w. vanity

15" w. linen closet

Overbuild existing concrete stairs to provide new landing and
stair system. Max. stair rise 7 3 4" and min. stair tread 10".

Existing coal chute.

Infill existing opening, align finish faces.

2 x 6 wood stud plumbing wall.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

Project Contacts

Owner:
Kurt & Sheree Beddingfield
P.O.Box 570
Poncha Springs, CO 81242
719-530-1296
kurtbcp@yahoo.com

Architect:
Architectural Services
Sarah F. Whittington R.A.
129 12 W. 3rd St. - Suite #5
Salida, CO 81201
719-539-5461
swhittington@bresnan.net

Structural Engineer:
Hachmann Design and Engineering
Abe Hachmann, P.E.
24050 CR 301A
Buena Vista, CO 81211
720-201-6303
ahachmann@gmail.com

Mechanical Engineer:
JK Mechanical Design LLC
Kirk Roberts P.E.
P.O. Box 1554
Buena Vista, CO 81211
303-952-0244
kirklroberts@gmail.com 35

FOR CONSTRUCTION

36

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 103 of 135

DanS
Line

DanS
Callout
Requires 30 foot fire separation distance. 

DanS
Line

DanS
Line

DanS
Line

DanS
Line

DanS
Line

DanS
Stamp

DanS
Stamp

DanS
Date



WC

6'-0"
2 X 6 STUD
PLUMBING WALL

3
'-4

"

2 X 4 WOOD STUD
WALL

5'-0" TURNING
RADIUS

WC

WC

2 X 6 STUD
PLUMBING WALL

INFILL EXISTING
OPENING - ALIGN
FINISH FACES

FOR ADA NOTES
RE: 5A2

CLEAR FLOOR
SPACE 2468

2468

3068

ELEV.

WALL HUNG LAV.

4'-0"

3
0

6
8

2

4'-0"

WC

UR.

UR.

EXISTING WINDOWS
TO REMAIN

FOR ADA NOTES
RE: 5A2

2 X 6 WOOD STUD
WALL - 2 HOUR RATED

5'-0" TURNING
RADIUS

5'-8"±
2 X 4 WOOD STUD
PRIVACY WALL COUNTERTOP W/

SINK & CABINET BASE

WALL HUNG URINALS
RE: 8A2

WALL HUNG LAV.

6'-6
"

6'-8
"±

MOP SINK

OPEN TO STAIRWELL
BELOW

3068

DW

12"
MAX.

17
" M

IN
.

19
" M

A
X.

3
3

" M
IN

.
3

6
" M

A
X.

TO
IL

E
T

D
IS

P
.

1'-6"

4
8

" M
IN

.
W

A
LL

3
3

" M
IN

.
3

6
" M

A
X.

39" MIN.
41" MAX.

3
9

" M
IN

.
4

1" 
M

A
X.

36" MIN. X 1 12" Ø
GRAB BAR

SMOOTH, HARD &
NON-ABSORBENT
SURFACE @ WALLS
& FLOOR

18" MIN. X 1 12" Ø
VERTICAL GRAB
BAR

42" MIN. X 1 12" Ø
GRAB BAR

TOILET PAPER
DISPENSER

18
 "

M
IN

.

3'-0"
MIN.

C L

24" MIN.
42" MAX.

4
8

" M
IN

.
W

A
LL

CL

G
R

A
B

B
A

R

G
R

A
B

B
A

R

G
R

A
B

B
A

R

17" MIN.
23" MAX.

SINK / COUNTER
DEPTH

8" KNEE
CLEARANCE

MIRROR UNIT

3
4

"
M

A
X.

27
"

M
A

X.

KNEE
CLEARANCE

INSULATE FITTINGS
& PIPE

11"
MIN.

6"
MAX.

9
"

TOE
CLEARANCE
KNEE
CLEARANCE

56" MIN.
CLEAR

60" MIN.
CLEAR

3
4

"
M

A
X.

30"
CLR.

SOAP
DISPENSER

V
A

N
IT

Y
H

E
IG

H
T

MIRROR

4
0

"
M

IR
R

O
R

V
A

N
IT

Y

W

D

WC
LAV

LAV
WC

4'-0"

6
'-4

"
6

"
6

'-0
"

9
'-0

"

BATH #1

BATH #2

KITCHEN

MECH.

54" W.
VANITY

LC

2 X 4 WOOD STUD
WALL

2668

2668

15" W.
LINEN
CABINET

3
6

" X
 7

2"
S

H
O

W
E

R

2 X 4 WOOD STUD
FURRING W/ R-13 INSULATION

3
6

" X
 7

2"
S

H
O

W
E

R LC

2'
-0

"
4

'-0
"

12'-5"±

2 X 6 WOOD STUD
PLUMBING WALL

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

ASPHALT

WM
WV

SHED

BELL
TOWER

2.75'

35
.5

4'

7.43'

10
.1

6' 11.31'

1.
28

'

19.97'

2.
36

'

13.95'

1.
07

'

18.87'

1
9
.2

5
'

27
.9

6'

0.65'

20
.8

7'

11.26'

1.
87

'

29.04'

0.
69

'

32.55'

1.
74

'

9.08'

17
.6

6'

FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH

N 
37

°5
4'
57

" E

93
.0

0'

S 52°02'25" E

100.00'

S 
37

°5
4'
57

" W

93
.0

0'

N 52°02'25" W

100.00' 34.76'

3.72'

19.12'

78
.8

5'

194.79'

24
6.

60
'

CURB

RAMP

*SEE NOTE 3

60.00'

5' RELOCATION
EASEMENT
(*SEE NOTE 4)

BUILDING
ENTRANCE

NEW BUILDING
EXIT - EXTEND
CONCRETE SLAB
FOR LANDING

EXISTING PARKING
AREA - 1 SPACE
REQUIRED

EXISTING DOOR
TO LOWER LEVEL

EXISTING DOOR
TO MAIN LEVEL

3
4" PLYWOOD SUB-FLOOR

2 X WOOD SLEEPERS

2 - LAYERS 34" SOLID
WOOD SUBSTRATE

2 X WOOD FLOOR JOISTS

2 X 4 WOOD CEILING
JOISTS

PLASTER & LATH CEILING

1 X WOOD STRAPPING

2 - LAYERS 58" TYPE 'X'
GYPSUM WALLBOARD

FILL CAVITY W/ NEW
INSULATION

7"
N

E
W

E
XI

S
TI

N
G

FL
O

O
R

 S
Y

S
TE

M

STAIRS TO UPPER
SEATING AREA

36" H. 1 12" Ø METAL
HANDRAIL W/ 4" H.
RAIL FROM RAMP FOR
EDGE PROTECTIONUPPER SEATING

AREA

FLOOR LINE

ADA COMPLIANT
RAMP W/ 1 : 12 SLOPE

EXISTING POST

36" H. HANDRAIL

1'-
3

"
3

'-0
"

15'-0" 5'-0"

4
"

3
'-0

"

36"
CLEAR

FLOOR LINE

ADA COMPLIANT
RAMP W/ 1 : 12 SLOPE

36" H. 1 12" Ø METAL
HANDRAIL W/ 4" H.
RAIL FROM RAMP FOR
EDGE PROTECTION

UPPER SEATING
AREA

DRAWN BY: P.G.
CHECKED BY: S.W.

SITE DIAGRAM
FLOOR SYSTEM

DIAGRAM
ADA RESTROOM

PLANS
ADA

ELEVATIONS
ADA RAMP

JOB # 16018.32

DATE: 1/23/2018

A2
2 OF 2

3WOMEN'S ADA RESTROOM
1
4" = 1'-0"

RE: 2A1 

4MEN'S ADA RESTROOM
1
4" = 1'-0"

RE:  2A1

6ADA ELEVATIONS
1 4" = 1'-0"
RE:  2A1

B
L
U

E
 C

O
L
L
A

R
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T
S

4
19

 D
 S

TR
E

E
T

S
A

LI
D

A
, C

0
 8

12
0

1

5BASEMENT BATHROOMS
1
4" = 1'-0"

RE: 3A1 

SITE DIAGRAM
1" = 20'-0"
RE: LEGAL DESCRIPTION, ILC DATED 4/22/20161

WATER METERWM

ELECTRIC METER

1 1/2" ALUM. CAP LS 16117

LEGEND

CONCRETE

WATER VALVEWV

X X FENCE

OVERHEAD UTILITY

SEWER MAN HOLE

FLOOR SYSTEM DIAGRAM
N.T.S.2

1 HOUR WALL1

2 HOUR WALL2

7ADA RAMP ELEVATIONS
1
4" = 1'-0"

RE:  2A1

8FIRE ASSEMBLIES
N.T.S.
RE: 

FOR CONSTRUCTION

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 104 of 135

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJOINING 2 STORY BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
9300.0 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.21 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
D       STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOURTH       STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

kjefferson
Arrow

kjefferson
Text Box
Required parking 1 space.

kjefferson
Stamp

kjefferson
Approved



(1) 

1

2

" Ø WEDGE ANCHOR TO FOOTING

(1) 

1

2

" BOLT POST TO BEAM

W8X21# or w10x15# STEEL BEAM TWO SPAN ONE PIECE

2X6 SLEEPER ATTACHED TO

STEEL BEAM W/ (1) 

3

8

" THRU

BOLT @ 36" O.C.

3" SCHEDULE 40 ADJUSTABLE STEEL POST

48" SQUARE PAD

W/(6) #4 REBAR

EACH WAY

1
2
"

CUT OUT SLAB AND DIG IN NEW FOOTINGS

EXISTING FLOOR

JOISTS SPLICE AT

BEAM LOCATION

24" SQUARE PAD

W/(2) #4 REBAR

EACH WAY

24" SQUARE PAD

W/(2) #4 REBAR

EACH WAY

12' +/- CONTACT ENGINEER IF MORE THAN 12" OF VARIANCE

12' +/- CONTACT ENGINEER IF MORE THAN 12" OF VARIANCE

DOWEL INTO

EXISTING

FOOT IF

AVAILABLE

(1) 

1

2

" Ø WEDGE ANCHOR TO FOOTING

(1) 

1

2

" BOLT POST TO BEAM

W10X45# or W12x35# STEEL BEAM

2X6 SLEEPER ATTACHED TO

STEEL BEAM W/ (1) 

3

8

" THRU

BOLT @ 36" O.C.

3" SCHEDULE 40 ADJUSTABLE STEEL POST

36" SQUARE PAD

W/(4) #4 REBAR

EACH WAY

1
2
"

CUT OUT SLAB AND DIG IN NEW FOOTINGS

EXISTING FLOOR

JOISTS SPLICE AT

BEAM LOCATION

36" SQUARE PAD

W/(4) #4 REBAR

EACH WAY

19' +/- CONTACT ENGINEER IF MORE THAN 12" OF VARIANCE

NEW BEAM AT REAR OF BUILDING

1

2

"=1'

1

S1

NEW BEAM AT FRONT OF BUILDING

1

2

"=1'

2

S1

DRAWN BY:

2
4
0
5
0
 
C
o
u
n
t
y
 
R
d
 
3
0
1
A

B
u
e
n
a
 
V
i
s
t
a
,
 
C
O

 
8
1
2
1
1

(
7
2
0
)
 
2
0
1
-
6
3
0
3

DATES:

9-2-17 CONST.

PROJECT # B17-157

AH

B
E
D

D
I
N

G
F
I
E
L
D

 
R
E
-
M

O
D

E
L

4
1
9
 
D

 
S
T
R
E
E
T

S
A
L
I
D

A
,
 
C
O

L
O

R
A
D

O
 
8
1
2
0
1

S1

FOUNDATION PLAN

SCALE 

1

2

"=1'

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 105 of 135

DanS
Text Box
It is unclear where these beams are to be installed.  Please specify on floor plan. 



DATE: 01/18/18

DRAWN BY: JLR
CHECKED BY: KLR

P.O. BOX 1554 BUENA VISTA, CO  81211
719.966.7570   303.952.0244

JKMECHANICALDESIGN@GMAIL.COM

C
O
L
O

RA DO  REGISTE
R
E
D

P
R
O
F

E
S S IO N A L  E N G

IN
E
E
R

K

I

R

K

 
R

O B

E

R

T

S

33719

JOB # 1802

F
IR

S
T
 B

A
P

T
IS

T
 C

H
U

R
C

H
4

19
 D

 S
TR

E
E

T
S

A
LI

D
A

, C
0

 8
12

0
1

PLUMBING
LEGEND,
SCHEDULES,
DETAILS, & GAS
ISOMETRIC

P0
1 OF 4

DESCRIPTION

STRAINER W/

CAPPED HOSE-

END CONNECTION

SHEET KEY NOTES

(CONN. NEW TO

POINT OF CONN.

FINISHED FLOOR

INVERT ELEVATION

NOT TO SCALE

HOSE BIBB,
HB

VTR

TEE DOWN

PLUG

PIPE CAP OR

FCO

WCO

WH

VENT THRU ROOF

(R)

FLOOR CLEANOUT

WALL CLEANOUT

WALL HYDRANT

(R)
RELOCATE

VALVE IN RISER

WATER CIRCULATING

SS

DOMESTIC HOT

HWC

CW

HW

DV

GC

BV

CV 

GV

(N)

(E)

BALL VALVE

GAS COCK

DRAIN VALVE

HOSE END

I.E.

NTS

(E)

(N)

EXISTING

NEW

DN

FF

DOWN

CHECK VALVE

#

TEE UP

ELBOW UP

ELBOW DOWN

GATE VALVE

POC

EXISTING)

SYMBOL

PLUMBING LEGEND

( NOT ALL SYMBOLS LISTED BELOW ARE BEING USED IN THIS SET OF PLUMBING DRAWINGS )

UNIONU

DESCRIPTIONABBR SYMBOL ABBR

STR

BLOW-OFF

VALVE &

SYMBOLDESCRIPTION ABBR

SANITARY VENT
V

GCO
GRADE CLEANOUT

SS

FLOOR DRAINFD

TEMPERATURE AND

PRESSURE RELIEF VALVE

BALANCING VALVE

UNDERGROUND PIPING     

THERMOMETER

G
G

NATURAL GAS

RPBFP BACKFLOW PREVENTOR

TMV

VALVE

THERMOSTATIC MIXING

ARROW INDICATES

DIRECTION OF FLOW

(D) (D)
DEMOLISH (REMOVE)

NOTES:

1. PROVIDE WITH A HEAVY DUTY ELONGATED OPEN FRONT SEAT LESS COVER (DIMENSIONS MUST FIT BOWL SPECIFIED), HEAVY DUTY WAX BOWL RING WITH HORN AND

BOLT KIT, ANGLE STOP, FLEXIBLE RISER, & CAST BRASS ESCUTCHEON WITH SET SCREW.  ORDER THE RIGHT TRIP LEVER FOR THE ONE ADA WATER CLOSET IN THE WOMEN'S

BATHROOM.

2. FLOW RATE OF THIS FIXTURE TO NOT EXCEED MAXIMUM FLOW RATES PER SCHEDULE ON THIS SHEET.

3. PROVIDE WITH AN ELONGATED CLOSED FRONT SEAT WITH COVER AND SOFT CLOSE HINGES (DIMENSIONS MUST FIT BOWL SPECIFIED), HEAVY DUTY WAX BOWL RING WITH HORN

AND BOLT KIT, ANGLE STOP, FLEXIBLE RISER, & CAST BRASS ESCUTCHEON WITH SET SCREW.

4. PROVIDE AND INSTALL WITH AMERICAN STANDARD SHROUD 0059.020EC, (0.5 GPM) SINGLE HANDLE ADA FAUCET FOR SINGLE HOLE INSTALLATION, WITH OPEN GRID STRAINER (NO

POP UP HOLE).  RECOMMEND DELTA FAUCET MODEL 22C951 OR EQUAL.  PROVIDE P-TRAP, ANGLE STOPS, & FLEXIBLE RISERS AND CAREFULLY INSTALL SO THAT ALL PLUMBING IS

INSIDE THE SHROUD.  THERE SHALL BE NO EXPOSED PLUMBING.  SEE TMV-1 DETAIL ON THIS SHEET.

5. PROVIDE AND INSTALL WITH (0.5 GPM) SINGLE HANDLE FAUCET FOR SINGLE HOLE INSTALLATION, WITH METAL POP UP.  COORDINATE FAUCET HOLES IN LAVATORY WITH FAUCET.

PROVIDE P-TRAP, ANGLE STOPS, FLEXIBLE RISERS, & CAST BRASS ESCUTCHEONS WITH SET SCREW.

6. INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS.

7. PROVIDE TMV-1 AT ALL LAVATORIES.  SEE PLANS FOR LOCATION AND TEMPERATURE SETTINGS.  SEE TMV-1 DETAIL ON THIS SHEET.

8. PROVIDE AND INSTALL WITH 3/4 GRATE AND P-TRAP.  COORDINATE EXACT MODEL NUMBER REQUIRED FOR INSTALLATION IN APPROPRIATE FLOOR TYPE.   LOCATE FLOOR SINK TO

BE ACCESSIBLE AND DRAIN LINES VISIBLE.  SEE FLOOR SINK DETAIL AND INDIRECT DRAIN DETAIL ON THIS SHEET.

9. PROVIDE FAUCET AND DRAIN SPECIFIED BY OWNER.  COORDINATE FAUCET HOLE PUNCHING WITH SINK.  PROVIDE AND INSTALL WITH P-TRAP, ANGLE STOPS, FLEXIBLE RISERS

AND CAST BRASS ESCUTCHEONS WITH SET SCREW.

10. PROVIDE FAUCET AND DRAIN SPECIFIED BY OWNER.  COORDINATE FAUCET HOLE PUNCHING WITH SINK.  PROVIDE AND INSTALL WITH P-TRAP, ANGLE STOPS, FLEXIBLE RISERS

AND CAST BRASS ESCUTCHEONS WITH SET SCREW.  PROVIDE BRANCH TAILPIECE FOR S-2 SINK ADJACENT TO THE DW-1 DISHWASHER ON THE MAIN LEVEL.

11. PROVIDE WALL FAUCET SPECIFIED BY OWNER.  PROVIDE AND INSTALL WITH ANGLE STOPS, FLEXIBLE RISERS AND CAST BRASS ESCUTCHEONS WITH SET SCREW.

12. RECOMMEND DELTA FAUCETS FOR ALL LAV AND SINK FAUCETS SO THE ENGINEER CAN OBTAIN PARTS OR REPLACEMENTS  IN THE FUTURE AS NEEDED.  THE LOCAL REP

PROVIDES A HIGH LEVEL OF CUSTOMER SUPPORT.

13. FIXTURE/EQUIPMENT TO HAVE INDIRECT WASTE DRAIN ROUTED TO FLOOR SINK WITH AIR GAP.  SEE P1.

14. FAUCET IS PROVIDED WITH SINK.  PROVIDE AND INSTALL WITH P-TRAP, ANGLE STOPS, FLEXIBLE RISERS AND CAST BRASS ESCUTCHEONS WITH SET SCREW.

15. CONNECT DISHWASHER DRAIN HOSE FROM DISHWASHER AND ROUTE THROUGH HIGH LOOP DRAIN ATTACHED TO BOTTOM OF COUNTERTOP PER LOCAL AUTHORITY.  TERMINATE

ONE DISHWASHER TO THE BRANCH TAILPIECE OF S-2 SINK.  TERMINATE THE DISHWASHER DRAIN IN THE BASEMENT TO SP-1 DISHWASHER STANDPIPE.  SEE SP-1 DETAIL ON THIS

SHEET.  VERIFY ACTUAL PLUMBING CONNECTION SIZES WITH EQUIPMENT.

16. PROVIDE ON HOT WATER LINE FOR EACH DW-1 DISHWASHER AND ICE MAKER LINE FOR FREEZER ON MAIN LEVEL IN AN ACCESSIBLE LOCATION.

17. PROVIDE WITH WATER HAMMER ARRESTOR(S).  TRANSITION AND CONNECT TO EQUIPMENT AS REQUIRED.

18. PROVIDE WITH SHOWER TRIM SPECIFIED BY OWNER: PRESSURE BALANCED MIXING VALVE, HANDLE, SHOWER HEAD, ARM & FLANGE, AND REQUIRED ROUGH IN.  PROVIDE P-TRAP

AND ROUND OR SQUARE SHOWER DRAIN WITH STRAINER AS SPECIFIED BY OWNER.  COORDINATE WITH ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS.

19. PROVIDE WITH AMERICAN STANDARD 0.125 GPF MANUAL FLUSH VALVE 6045.013.002 AND ZURN Z1222 WALL CARRIER FOR INSTALLATION AT ADA HEIGHT

20. INSTALL HA-2 ON THE CW BRANCH LINE IN THE WALL BETWEEN THE TWO URINALS.  SEE P1.

CWSS/SW V

CONNECTION SIZES

NOTES

NEW PLUMBING FIXTURE CONNECTION SCHEDULE

MANUFACTURER/MODEL NO.

(OR EQUAL)

PLAN

MARK

DESCRIPTION

(N)S-1 2,9,12

105 HW

(N)FS-1
812" SQUARE PVC FLOOR SINK & TRAP GUARD 

1-1/2"
SIOUX CHIEF 861-3 & SURE SEAL 97042

3"

1-1/2" 1/2" 1/2"

140 HW140

EXISTING PIPING TO BE

REMOVED

20" x 23-7/8" HEAVY DUTY SERVICE SINK WITH LEGS 141/2"1-1/2" 1/2"

DISHWASHER
153/8"5/8"

(N)DW-1

(N)S-5

DOMESTIC COLD WATER

DOMESTIC HOT WATER

140 DEGREE HOT WATER

DR DR DRAIN

(N)TMV-1
THERMOSTATIC MIXING VALVE

6,7WATTS LFUSG-B 3/8" 3/8"3/8"

(N)AAV-1 AIR ADMITTANCE VALVE
6

STUDOR MINI VENT 

1 COMPARTMENT SINK (18 GAUGE RECOMMENDED)

PROVIDED BY OWNER INSTALLED BY PC

1-1/2"
FIAT PRODUCTS TAT1 WITH FAUCET

SW

SW
SANITARY WASTE

(GREY WATER)

SANITARY SEWER

(BLACK WATER)

BFP BACKFLOW PREVENTOR

PRV PRESSURE REDUCING

VALVE

GAS FIRED TANK TYPE WATER HEATER SCHEDULE

MODEL EWT LWT

NOTES:

1. COORDINATE HIGH ALTITUDE REQUIREMENTS WITH MANUFACTURER.

2. PROVIDE WITH PVC ADAPTORS.

3. PROVIDE VENTING PER MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDATIONS & FIELD CONDITIONS.  DO NOT EXCEED LENGTH LIMITATIONS FOR VENTING.

4. MAINTAIN MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDED INSTALLATION CLEARANCES & INSTALL PER ALL MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS & INSTRUCTIONS.

5. COORDINATE ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS WITH ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR.

6. PROVIDE WITH CONDENSATE NEUTRALIZING KIT.

DIA. HGT NOTESRECOVERY

GPH AT 100

DEGREE RISE

INPUT AT

SL (BTUH)

PLAN

CODE

LBS VOLT/PHTHERMAL

 EFFICIENCY

WHG-1 AO SMITH BTH-199MXi 199,000 40 120 160 GPH 97% 27-3/4" 76" 1-6460 120/1 15

AMPSGAL.

100

MFR.

(OR

EQUAL)

1ST HOUR

DELIVERY

230 GPH

(N)WC-2

(N)L-1

3"

1-1/4"

1/2"

3/8" 3/8"1-1/4"

ADA WATER CLOSET - ELONGATED FLUSH

TANK FLOOR MOUNT (1.28 GPF)

TOTO ENTRADA CST454CEFG(R)#01 (RIGHT

SIDE TRIP LEVER)

2"

1-1/2"

1,2

2,5,12

(N)WC-1
3" 1/2"2" 1,2

GAS FIRED WATER HEATER CONNECTION DETAIL

(WHG-1)

1" CW SUPPLY

D
R

3" EXHAUST.

SEE FLOOR

PLANS.

APPROVED TEMPERATURE AND

PRESSURE RELIEF VALVE

NOTES:

1) DIAGRAMMATIC ONLY.

VERIFY ALL PIPING IN THE

FIELD.

2) PROVIDE VACUUM RELIEF

VALVE AS INDICATED.

3) SEE FLOOR PLAN FOR

CONTINUATION AND PIPE

SIZES.

4) TRANSITION PIPE SIZES TO

INLET SIZE OF EQUIPMENT AS

REQUIRED.

5) PROVIDE HEAT TRAPS ON

SUPPLY AND DISCHARGE

PIPING IF NOT INTEGRAL TO

WATER HEATER.

6) INSULATE ALL HOT WATER

PIPING MAINS PER 2015 IECC.

7) INSTALL PER

MANUFACTURER'S

RECOMMENDATIONS.

8) PROVIDE AIR VENTS ON ALL

HIGH POINTS OF HWC LINES.

9) PROVIDE WITH CONDENSATE

NEUTRALIZING KIT.

1/2" HWC

RELIEF PIPE-FULL SIZE OF

DISCHARGE OPENING

WHG-1

P-1

(R)ET RELOCATED DIAPHRAM

EXPANSION TANK

NOT TO SCALE

VACUUM RELIEF VALVE

SHUTOFF VALVE (TYP.)

FS-1 FLOOR SINK

SEE PLUMBING PLAN FOR

CONTINUATION AND PIPE

SIZES

ROUTE CONDENSATE LINE

FROM CONDENSATE TRAP TO

FLOOR DRAIN OR FLOOR SINK

WITH NEUTRALIZER AND

APPROVED AIR GAP.  SLOPE 

1

4

"

PER FOOT.

DRAIN PAN (MINIMUM DIMENSIONS

2.5" HIGH & 2" WIDER IN DIAMETER

THAN WHG-1)

3" INTAKE AIR. SEE FLOOR PLANS.

INSTALL TEE WITH HOSE BARB

FITTING AND CONNECT FLEXIBLE

DRAIN HOSE TO LOOP WATER

TRAP.  RUN DRAIN HOSE TO FLOOR

SINK SEPARATE FROM OTHER

CONDENSATE.

FINISHED FLOOR

1" 120  HW

1"

1-1/2" GAS

1-1/2"

1/2"

2"

NOT TO SCALE

CLOTHES WASHER WALL BOX

PIPING DETAIL (CWB-1)

CWB-1 CLOTHES WASHER

SUPPLY & DRAIN BOX

W/WATER HAMMER

ARRESTORS

1/2" HW & CW SUPPLY

PIPES IN WALL

2" DIA. STANDPIPE IN

WALL (18" MIN. & 42"

MAX. HIGH)

FLOOR

2" AAV-1

2" WCO

2" COMBO

FITTING

2" WASTE

1.5 GPMLAVATORY, PRIVATE

MAXIMUM

FLOW RATE

PLUMBING

FIXTURE

0.5 GPM

2.0 GPMSHOWER HEAD

2.2 GPMSINK FAUCET

1.0 GPFFLUSHING URINAL

LAVATORY, PUBLIC

(METERING)

1.28 GPFWATER CLOSET

LAVATORY, PUBLIC

(NON-METERING)

0.25 GP

CYCLE

MAXIMUM FIXTURE

FLOW RATES PER

SENATE BILL 14-103

STANDPIPE FOR DISHWASHER DETAIL (SP-1)

LOCATE STANDPIPE

TO BE ACCESSIBLE

AND VISIBLE.

2" DIA. STANDPIPE IN

WALL (18" MIN. & 42"

MAX. HIGH)

MAIN LEVEL

FLOOR

2" WCO

2" COMBO FITTING

2" WASTE

SEE FLOOR PLAN FOR

CONTINUATION.

NOT TO SCALE

COUNTERTOP

2"

2" AAV-1

DW-1 DISHWASHER

FLOOR SINK DETAIL (FS-1)

PIPE SIZE AS

NOTED ON PLAN

FLOOR DRAIN, SET STRAINER

LEVEL WITH CONCRETE

NOT TO SCALE

G.C. TO COORDINATE

FLOOR FINISH &

SEALANT SYSTEM.

NOTE:

LOCATE FLOOR SINK

TO BE ACCESSIBLE

AND DRAIN LINES

VISIBLE.

SURE SEAL TRAP

GUARD (OR EQUAL)

FLOOR

VENT

TRAP ARM

WASTE

NOT TO SCALE

AIR GAP TO BE

MINIMUM OF TWICE

THE SIZE OF THE

INDIRECT WASTE

PIPE PER 2015 IPC

INDIRECT DRAIN PIPING

CLUSTER CLOSELY

TOGETHER

INDIRECT WASTE DRAIN DETAIL

EXISTING FLOOR

SINK.

 NOTE: CAREFULLY

COORDINATE DRAIN

LINES TO BE

ACCESSIBLE &

VISIBLE

FLOOR

WCO

(N)SANITARY WASTE

IN FLOOR JOIST SPACE.

(N)1-1/4" ROUTED IN

INTERIOR WALL

(N)L-1 LAV

TMV DETAIL (TMV-1)

NOT TO SCALE

CAREFULLY INSTALL

ALL PLUMBING INSIDE

WALL.

(N)TMV-1 IN A LOCKING

WALL ACCESS BOX.

COORDINATE WITH G.C.

(N)CW & HW

ADA LAVATORY- SELF RIMMING OR UNDERMOUNT

(0.5 GPM)

SPECIFIED BY OWNER INSTALLED BY PC

1-1/2" OR

2"

ADA WATER CLOSET - ELONGATED FLUSH

TANK FLOOR MOUNT (1.28 GPF)

TOTO DRAKE II CST454CEFG#01

120 HW

(N)CWB-1 1/2"2" 1/2" 17

SHOWER & SHOWER DRAIN (N)SH-1
1/2"2" 1/2"1-1/2" 2,18

2"

SPECIFIED BY OWNER PROVIDED

BY PLUMBING CONTRACTOR

POINT OF USE WATER HAMMER ARRESTOR(N)HA-1

1/2" 16

SIOUX CHIEF 660 MINIRESTER (SIZE AA )

IPS CORP. DU-ALL DUAL DRAIN

W2702HA-85714

STANDPIPE FOR DISHWASHER

2"PROVIDED BY PLUMBING CONTRACTOR 2" 15

ICE MAKER BOX WITH WATER HAMMER ARRESTOR(N)IMB-1

IPS CORP. AB9702HA-87890

CLOTHES WASHER WALL BOX WITH

WATER HAMMER ARRESTERS

1/2"
17

(N)S-2 1-1/2" 1/2" 1/2"

1 COMPARTMENT SINK (18 GAUGE RECOMMENDED)

1-1/2"

(N)S-3

PROVIDED BY OWNER INSTALLED BY PC

1-1/2" 1/2" 1/2"

3 COMPARTMENT BAR SINK

1-1/2"

(N)S-4 1-1/2" 1/2" 1/2"1-1/2"

1 COMPARTMENT KITCHEN SINK (18 GAUGE

STAINLESS STEEL RECOMMENDED)

WATER HAMMER ARRESTOR(N)HA-2

3/4" 20

SIOUX CHIEF 653-BX HYDRARESTER

ADA URINAL MANUAL FLUSH VALVE (0.125 GPF)(N)UR-1 2" 1-1/2" 3/4"
AMERICAN STANDARD DECORUM 6042.001EC 2,19

EXISTING 1000 CFH GAS METER LOCATED AT

ADJACENT HOUSE TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

TOTAL NEW LOAD: 959 CFH

~ 285' TO FURTHEST FIXTURE.

(E)UNDERGROUND

GAS SERVICE TO REMAIN

UNCHANGED.

(E)REGULATOR

EXISTING GAS METER

SERVING ADJACENT

HOUSE TO REMAIN

UNCHANGED.

NEW GAS ISOMETRIC

NO SCALE

NEW GAS CONNECTION SCHEDULE

DISTANCE TO

EQUIPMENT

GAS SIZE

T0 EQUIP

TOTAL

CFH

TOTAL

BTUH

EQUIPMENT

863,000TOTAL NEW LOAD 959

221 1-1/2"199,000NEW WHG-1 WATER HEATER

738 2"280'664,000(E)STEAM BOILER

699,500TOTAL DEMO LOAD 777

3935,500(D)WHG-DEMO WATER HEATER

GAS NOTES:

1.  TRANSITION GAS SIZE TO

INLET SIZE OF EQUIPMENT AS

REQUIRED.

2.  SIZES BASED ON 7 IN. W.C.,

0.67 SPECIFIC GRAVITY AND

900 BTUH/CFH FOR SCHEDULE

40 METALLIC PIPE.  SIZES

SHOULD BE RECALCULATED

FOR OTHER PIPE MATERIAL.

DO NOT DOWNSIZE ANY PIPES

WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL

FROM ENGINEER.

3. COORDINATE EXACT BTUH

AND PRESSURE REQUIRED TO

EACH PIECE OF EQUIPMENT

PER MANUFACTURER'S

RECOMMENDATIONS AND

PROVIDE REGULATORS AS

REQUIRED FOR PROPER

OPERATION.

4. FIELD VERIFY EXACT

DISTANCE TO FURTHEST

PIECE OF EQUIPMENT.

DISTANCE SHOWN IS

APPROXIMATE ONLY.

DISTANCE SHOWN IS

APPROXIMATE ONLY AND HAS

50% ADDED FOR EQUIVALENT

LENGTH OF FITTINGS AND

VALVES.

5. COORDINATE NEW GAS

LOADS WITH ATMOS ENERGY.

3/4"290'

(E)2" GAS ROUTED

UNDERGROUND TO BUILDING TO

REMAIN UNCHANGED.

(D)WHG

39 CFH

~290'

738 1"280'664,000(E)STEAM BOILER

285'

(E)STEAM

BOILER

738 CFH

~280'

(N)WHG-1

221 CFH

~285'

(N)1-1/2"

EXISTING GAS ISOMETRIC

NO SCALE

(E)STEAM

BOILER

738 CFH

~280'

(E)2" GAS ROUTED

UNDERGROUND TO

BUILDING TO REMAIN

UNCHANGED.

CAP EXISTING 3/4" GAS AT 2"

GAS MAIN AND REMOVE

DOWNSTREAM PIPING

SHOWN HATCHED.

CONNECT NEW 1-1/2" GAS TO

EXISTING 2" GAS AND ROUTE

IN CEILING SPACE.

CAREFULLY INSTALL

ALL LAV PLUMBING

INSIDE LAV SHROUD

SO THERE IS

NO EXPOSED

PLUMBING.

(N)1-1/4" VENT IN INTERIOR WALL

(N)L-2

1-1/4" 3/8" 3/8"1-1/4" 2,4,12
ADA WALL HUNG LAVATORY W/SHROUD (0.5 GPM)

AMERICAN STANDARD MURRO 0955.001EC

(N)HA-1

1/2" HW

NOTE:

ONE TMV-1 CAN SERVE BOTH LAVATORIES IN THE WOMEN'S

RESTROOM ON THE MAIN LEVEL.  BRANCH TEMPERED HW IN

WALLTO EACH LAV FROM TMV-1 AS REQUIRED.

WALL PENETRATION,

TYPICAL

RECIRCULATION PUMP SCHEDULE

P-1

MFR.

TACO 

MODEL

006-IFC

TYPE

SMARTPLUS

GPM

1 7

FLUID

WATER

MOTOR

RPM VOLT/PH

115/1

AMPS

NOTES

.523250

HP

1/40 1,2,3,4

NOTES:

1.  PUMP TO HAVE INTEGRAL CHECK VALVE.

2.  PLUMBING CONTRACTOR TO SET RECIRC PUMP TO "SMART" MODE AND PROVIDE OWNER TRAINING ON PUMP 

SETTINGS.

3.  COORDINATE ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS WITH ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR.

4.  INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.

PLAN

CODE

TDH FT.

TEMP.

SENSOR

(N)WC-3
3" 1/2"2" 2,3

ADA WATER CLOSET - ELONGATED FLUSH

TANK FLOOR MOUNT (1.28 GPF)

TOTO DRAKE II CST454CEFG#01

SPECIFIED BY OWNER INSTALLED BY PC

SPECIFIED BY OWNER INSTALLED BY PC

SPECIFIED BY OWNER INSTALLED BY PC

(N)SP-1

2,10,12

2,11,13

2,9,12

6" DRIP

LEG

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 106 of 135



MEN

MEETING

MEETING

OFFICE

STAGE

MEETING

MEETING

COFFEE

EXIT

EXIT

CHURCH

TOWER

R
A

M
P

1 :
 12

27

1

(N)WC-1

(N)S-1

(N)DW-1

2

(N)HA-1

(N)UR-1

(N)HA-1

(N)S-2

(N)FS-1

(N)WC-1

(N)S-3

(N)L-1 

(N)WC-2

3

(N)AAV-1
5

4

(N)L-16 7

9

11

(N)1" CW

(N)3/4"

(N)AAV-1

(N)1"

(N)UR-1

12

10

13

(N)HA-2

(N)AAV-1 5

15

14

16

17

(N)3"

(N)3"

19

18

(N)WC-1

23

30

20(N)3/4"

22

21

8

25

25

26

(N)L-1 

(N)3"

(N)3"

(N)3"

28
(N)AAV-1

(N)S-2

29

(N)TMV-1

(N)AAV-111

(N)S-2

(N)S-5

5
(N)AAV-1

24

(N)TMV-1

(N)AAV-1

4

(
N

)
S

S
(
N

)
S

S

(N)SW

(
N

)
S

S

(N)SS (N)SS

31

DATE: 01/18/18

DRAWN BY: JLR
CHECKED BY: KLR

P.O. BOX 1554 BUENA VISTA, CO  81211
719.966.7570   303.952.0244

JKMECHANICALDESIGN@GMAIL.COM

C
O
L
O

RA DO  REGISTE
R
E
D

P
R
O
F

E
S S IO N A L  E N G

IN
E
E
R

K

I

R

K

 
R

O B

E

R

T

S

33719

JOB # 1802

F
IR

S
T
 B

A
P

T
IS

T
 C

H
U

R
C

H
4

19
 D

 S
TR

E
E

T
S

A
LI

D
A

, C
0

 8
12

0
1

NEW MAIN LEVEL PLUMBING PLAN

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

NORTH

EXISTING MANHOLE TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

EXISTING 4" SANITARY SEWER & VENT RISER TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.  SEE P2 FOR CONTINUATION DOWN.

DEMO EXISTING WATER CLOSET AND LAVATORY SHOWN DOTTED.  DEMO ASSOCIATED CW, HW, SANITARY

SEWER AND VENT PIPING ROUTED AND PATCH WALL AND FLOOR REQUIRED.  SEE P2 FOR ASSOCIATED

PLUMBING ROUTED IN THE  BASEMENT LEVEL CEILING SPACE.

ROUTE NEW CW, SANITARY SEWER, AND HW UP THROUGH THE FLOOR FROM THE BASEMENT CEILING SPACE

BELOW AS INDICATED.  CONNECT TO FIXTURE AS REQUIRED.  COORDINATE REQUIRED FLOOR

PENETRATIONS WITH G.C.  SEE P3 FOR CONTINUATION DOWN.

INSTALL A NEW AAV-1 AIR ADMITTANCE VALVE A MINIMUM OF 4" ABOVE THE HORIZONTAL BRANCH DRAIN OR

FIXTURE DRAIN AS INDICATED.  INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS.

ROUTE NEW CW AND SANITARY SEWER UP THROUGH THE FLOOR FROM THE BASEMENT CEILING SPACE

BELOW AS INDICATED.  CONNECT TO FIXTURE AS REQUIRED.  COORDINATE REQUIRED FLOOR

PENETRATIONS WITH G.C.  SEE P3 FOR CONTINUATION DOWN.

ROUTE NEW CW AND HW UP IN THE WALL FROM THE BASEMENT CEILING SPACE BELOW AS INDICATED.

BRANCH TO SERVE FIXTURE AS REQUIRED.  ROUTE NEW SANITARY WASTE FROM THE BASEMENT CEILING

SPACE BELOW TO SERVE FIXTURE AS REQUIRED.  SEE P3 FOR CONTINUATION DOWN.

ROUTE 3/8" CW AND 3/8" HW OVER IN WALL AND CONNECT TO NEW TMV-1 THERMOSTATIC MIXING VALVE

RECESSED IN THE WALL WITH A LOCKING ACCESS PANEL IN AN ACCESSIBLE LOCATION UNDER THE NEW L-1

LAVATORY.  COORDINATE ACCESS PANEL WITH G.C AND LOCATE TO NOT INTERFERE WITH WALL FINISHES.

SET TMV-1 TO 105 DEGREES (F) MAXIMUM.  ROUTE 3/8" CW AND 3/8" TEMPERED HW TO SERVE EACH NEW L-1

FAUCET.  SEE TMV-1 DETAIL ON P0.  (ONE TMV-1 CAN SERVE BOTH L-1 LAVATORIES IN THE WOMEN'S

RESTROOM.  BRANCH TEMPERED HW OVER IN WALL TO SERVE EACH LAVATORY AS REQUIRED.)

ROUTE NEW 1" CW UP INTO THE WALL FROM THE BASEMENT CEILING SPACE.  BRANCH TO SERVE NEW L-1

LAVATORY AND CONTINUE 1" CW OVER IN THE WALL TO SERVE ADJACENT FIXTURES AS INDICATED.

INSTALL NEW HA-2 WATER HAMMER ARRESTOR ON THE 3/4" CW BRANCH IN THE WALL BETWEEN THE TWO

NEW  UR-1 URINALS AS INDICATED.

ROUTE VENT UP IN WALL FROM FIXTURE DRAIN.  ROUTE VENT OVER IN WALL FROM ADJACENT FIXTURE(S)

AND TERMINATE COMBINED VENT WITH AN AAV-1 AIR ADMITTANCE VALVE INSTALLED HIGH IN THE CEILING

SPACE AS INDICATED.  SEE NEW WASTE & VENT ISOMETRIC ON P2 FOR SIZES.

SEE PLUMBING FIXTURE CONNECTION SCHEDULE ON P0 FOR INDIVIDUAL PIPE SIZES TO EACH NEW FIXTURE.

(TYPICAL)

ROUTE 3/4" HW AND 1/2" CW UP IN THE WALL.  TEE 1/2" CW TO EACH NEW S-2 SINK.  BRANCH 1/2" HW TO

CONNECT TO EACH NEW S-2 SINK.  TEE 1/2" HW TO CONNECT TO NEW DW-1 DISHWASHER WITH NEW HA-1

WATER HAMMER ARRESTOR LOCATED IN AN ACCESSIBLE LOCATION IN THE BACK OF THE CABINET.

CONNECT DISHWASHER DRAIN HOSE THROUGH HIGH LOOP DRAIN ATTACHED TO BOTTOM OF COUNTERTOP

AND CONNECT TO BRANCH TAIL PIECE OF ADJACENT S-2 SINK PER LOCAL AUTHORITY.

ROUTE 1/2" CW UP THROUGH THE FLOOR AND INSTALL A NEW HA-2 POINT OF USE WATER HAMMER

ARRESTER IN AN ACCESSIBLE LOCATION.  CONNECT TO REFRIGERATOR/FREEZER AS REQUIRED.

COORDINATE FLOOR PENETRATION LOCATION WITH EQUIPMENT.

NEW S-3 THREE COMPARTMENT BAR SINK.  ROUTE NEW 1/2" CW AND 1/2" HW UP IN WALL FROM BASEMENT

CEILING SPACE BELOW.  CONNECT TO FIXTURE WALL FAUCET AS REQUIRED.  SEE P3 FOR CONTINUATION

DOWN.  ROUTE 1-1/2" COMBINED DRAIN FROM S-3 SINK.  PROVIDE A P-TRAP WHEN INDIRECT HORIZONTAL

PIPING EXCEEDS 30" OR 54" IN TOTAL DEVELOPED LENGTH.  TERMINATE WITH INDIRECT CONNECTION AT

NEW FS-1 FLOOR SINK.  SEE FLOOR SINK AND INDIRECT WASTE DRAIN DETAILS ON P0.

NEW 3" SANITARY SEWER ROUTED DOWN THROUGH THE RAISED FLOOR OF THE MAIN LEVEL INTO THE

BASEMENT CEILING SPACE.  SEE P3 FOR CONTINUATION DOWN.  INVERT ELEVATION FROM FURTHEST

WOMEN'S WATER CLOSET IS APPROXIMATELY 13".  RAISED FLOOR IS A TOTAL OF 15".  CAREFULLY

COORDINATE REQUIRED PENETRATION DOWN INTO BASEMENT CEILING SPACE SO THE SANITARY SEWER

RUNS AS FAR AS POSSIBLE IN THE RAISED FLOOR OF THE MAIN LEVEL.

NEW 3" SANITARY SEWER ROUTED INSIDE THE RAISED FLOOR OF MAIN LEVEL.  (TYPICAL)

ROUTE NEW SANITARY WASTE UP THROUGH THE RAISED FLOOR OF THE MAIN LEVEL TO SERVE FIXTURE IN

THE WOMEN'S RESTROOM AS REQUIRED.  ROUTE VENT AS INDICATED.  SEE NEW WASTE & VENT ISOMETRIC

ON P2.  (TYPICAL)

ROUTE NEW 3/4" CW UP INTO THE RAISED FLOOR OF THE MAIN LEVEL FROM THE BASEMENT CEILING SPACE.

ROUTE INSIDE THE RAISED FLOOR AND BRANCH TO SERVE EACH FIXTURE AS INDICATED.   SEE P3 FOR

CONTINUATION DOWN.

ROUTE NEW CW UP THROUGH THE RAISED FLOOR OF THE MAIN LEVEL TO SERVE FIXTURE AS REQUIRED.

(TYPICAL OF ALL WATER CLOSETS IN THE WOMEN'S RESTROOM.)

3

4

2

1

KEYNOTES

5

6

7

8

9

11

12

13

14

16

NEW MAIN LEVEL
PLUMBING PLAN

P1
2 OF 4

10

15

17

18

19

20

21

ROUTE NEW 1/2" CW UP INTO WALL.  BRANCH CW TO SERVE NEAREST FIXTURE AND CONTINUE CW OVER

IN WALL TO SERVE ADJACENT FIXTURE AS INDICATED.

ROUTE NEW 1/2" HW UP INTO THE WALL FROM THE BASEMENT CEILING SPACE.  BRANCH HW TO SERVE

NEAREST FIXTURE AND CONTINUE HW OVER IN WALL TO SERVE ADJACENT FIXTURE AS INDICATED.  SEE

P3 FOR CONTINUATION DOWN.

ROUTE 3/8" CW AND 3/8" HW OVER IN WALL AND CONNECT TO NEW TMV-1 THERMOSTATIC MIXING VALVE

RECESSED IN THE WALL WITH A LOCKING ACCESS PANEL IN AN ACCESSIBLE LOCATION UNDER THE NEW

LAVATORY.  COORDINATE ACCESS PANEL WITH G.C AND LOCATE TO NOT INTERFERE WITH WALL

FINISHES.  SET TMV-1 TO 105 DEGREES (F) MAXIMUM.  ROUTE 3/8" CW AND 3/8" TEMPERED HW TO SERVE

NEW L-1 LAVATORY FAUCET.  SEE NEW TMV-1 DETAIL ON P0.

EXISTING IRRIGATION CONNECTIONS TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.  SEE P2 FOR EXISTING CW ROUTED IN

BASEMENT.

EXISTING 2" GAS ROUTED UNDERGROUND FROM EXISTING 1000 CFH GAS METER LOCATED AT

ADJACENT PROPERTY TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

22

23

24

25

26

EXISTING 2" GAS ROUTED ABOVE GRADE AND INTO EXISTING COAL CHUTE TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.  SEE P2 FOR

CONTINUATION.

INSTALL A NEW AAV-1 AIR ADMITTANCE VALVE IN THE CABINET IN AN ACCESSIBLE LOCATION.

DEMO EXISTING VENT FROM DEMO LAV ROUTED UP IN WALL CHASE AND CAP IN THE CEILING SPACE.

ROUTE 2" VENT UP IN WALL AND TERMINATE WITH AN AAV-1 AIR ADMITTANCE VALVE INSTALLED HIGH IN THE CEILING SPACE AS

INDICATED.  SEE NEW WASTE & VENT ISOMETRIC ON P2.

28

29

27

30

GENERAL NOTES:

1. CAREFULLY COORDINATE ALL PLUMBING ROUTING AND PENETRATIONS TO AVOID CONFLICTS WITH ARCHITECTURAL,

STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, AND ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS.

2. SEE P3 FOR PLUMBING SPECIFICATIONS.

3. ALL PIPE PENETRATIONS THROUGH THE FLOORS AND ROOF SHALL BE WATER TIGHT.

4. SEE SHEET P0 FOR GAS ISOMETRIC AND P2 FOR WASTE & VENT ISOMETRIC.

5. SLOPE ALL SANITARY SEWER/WASTE PIPING 3" AND LARGER INSIDE BUILDING AT A MINIMUM OF 1/8'' PER FOOT.

SLOPE ALL SANITARY SEWER/WASTE PIPING 2-1/2" AND SMALLER AND ALL HORIZONTAL VENT PIPING AT 1/4" PER

FOOT.

6. FIELD VERIFY AND FIELD COORDINATE EXACT LOCATIONS, SIZE AND INVERT ELEVATIONS FOR NEW PIPING

CONNECTIONS SHOWN.

7. SEE PLUMBING FIXTURE CONNECTION SCHEDULE ON P0 FOR INDIVIDUAL PIPE SIZES TO EACH NEW FIXTURE SHOWN.

8. PLUMBING COORDINATED TO 5 FEET OUTSIDE THE BUILDING FOOTPRINT.  SEE SITE PLAN FOR CONTINUATION AND

COORDINATE AS REQUIRED.

9. CONTRACTOR MUST KEEP A REDLINED SET OF DRAWINGS ON SITE SHOWING ANY PLUMBING/PIPING DEVIATIONS.

10. ALL DOMESTIC WATER VALVES SHALL MEET NSF 61.

11. PROVIDE ALL FLOOR AND WALL CLEAN OUTS AS REQUIRED BY CODE AND AS SHOWN.  COORDINATE LOCATIONS WITH

GENERAL CONTRACTOR.

12. RUN ALL PLUMBING TIGHT TO STRUCTURE AND ALONG BEAMS WHERE POSSIBLE.  COORDINATE WITH STRUCTURE.

13. COORDINATE ALL EQUIPMENT REQUIRING ELECTRICAL CONNECTIONS WITH ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR.

14. INSULATE ALL HW AND HWC PIPING PER THE 2015 IECC.

15. LABEL ALL NEW PIPING PER ANSI 13.1 (INCLUDE TYPE AND DIRECTION OF FLOW).

16. FIRESEAL ALL PENETRATIONS THROUGH FIRE RATED WALLS AND CEILINGS PER FIRE SEALING UL RATING.

COORDINATE WITH ARCHITECTURAL PLANS.

ROUTE 3" DIAMETER INTAKE AND EXHAUST AIR FROM NEW WHG-1 IN THE BASEMENT UP THROUGH THE

ROOF.  USE 45 DEGREE ELBOWS WHERE REQUIRED AND TERMINATE THROUGH THE ROOF PER

MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.  VERIFY THAT ACTUAL ROUTING DOES NOT EXCEED

MANUFACTURER'S MAXIMUM NUMBER OF 90 DEGREE ELBOWS & LENGTHS.  COORDINATE EXACT

TERMINATION LOCATION WITH FIELD CONDITIONS AND COORDINATE TERMINATION HEIGHT WITH LOCAL

BUILDING DEPARTMENT REQUIREMENTS.  MAINTAIN 3'-0" CLEAR FROM ROOF EDGE.   SEE P3 FOR

CONTINUATION DOWN.

31

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 107 of 135



C
R

A
W

LS
P

A
C

E

MECH.

(
E

)
S

S

11

(E)3/4"

G
G

10

2012

16

8

15

13

12

14

18

(D)WHG

3(D)WC-A

3
(D)LAV

3
(D)DF

3
(D)UR

3
(D)WC-B

7

22

4

6

5

4

2

21

23

4

4

1

9
(R)ET

17

17

17

17

19

(E)SS

(E)4"

24

DATE: 01/18/18

DRAWN BY: JLR
CHECKED BY: KLR

P.O. BOX 1554 BUENA VISTA, CO  81211
719.966.7570   303.952.0244

JKMECHANICALDESIGN@GMAIL.COM

C
O
L
O

RA DO  REGISTE
R
E
D

P
R
O
F

E
S S IO N A L  E N G

IN
E
E
R

K

I

R

K

 
R

O B

E

R

T

S

33719

JOB # 1802

F
IR

S
T
 B

A
P

T
IS

T
 C

H
U

R
C

H
4

19
 D

 S
TR

E
E

T
S

A
LI

D
A

, C
0

 8
12

0
1

DEMO BASEMENT
LEVEL
PLUMBING PLAN
& WASTE & VENT
ISOMETRIC

P2
3 OF 4

DEMO BASEMENT LEVEL

PLUMBING PLAN

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

NORTH

EXISTING 3/4" DOMESTIC CW SERVICE ROUTED UNDERGROUND FROM STREET MAIN TO BUILDING WITH THE EXISTING

WATER METER IN A PIT IN THE SIDEWALK OF E 4TH STREET TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

EXISTING IRRIGATION CONNECTIONS TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.  SEE P1 FOR EXISTING CW ABOVE GRADE.

CAP EXISTING 3/4" CW JUST AFTER THE IRRIGATION BRANCH IN THE FLOOR ACCESS PANEL.  ABANDON EXISTING CW

ROUTED UNDERSLAB.  SEE P3 FOR NEW WORK.

CAP EXISTING 3/4" CW AT THE BASEMENT FLOOR LEVEL WHERE IT PENETRATES INTO THE MECHANICAL ROOM.

REMOVE EXISTING 3/4" CW ROUTED UP IN THE MECHANICAL ROOM TO THE FIRST TEE.  THE TEE IS TO REMAIN FOR

RECONNECTION.  SEE P3 FOR NEW WORK.

EXISTING STEAM BOILER NOT IN USE TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

EXISTING FUNCTIONING STEAM BOILER AND ASSOCIATED STEAM PIPING TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.  EXISTING STEAM

PIPING IS NOT SHOWN AS THERE IS NO NEW WORK ON THE STEAM PIPING SYSTEM.

EXISTING MAKE UP WATER PIPING FOR THE STEAM BOILER TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

EXISTING BACKFLOW PREVENTER FOR THE STEAM BOILER MAKE UP WATER TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

EXISTING 2" GAS ROUTED UNDERGROUND FROM EXISTING 1000 CFH GAS METER LOCATED AT ADJACENT PROPERTY

TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

EXISTING 2" GAS ROUTED ABOVE GRADE AND INTO EXISTING COAL CHUTE AND INTO THE CEILING SPACE OF THE

EXISTING MECHANICAL ROOM TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

CAP EXISTING 3/4" GAS BRANCH SERVING DEMO WATER HEATER AT THE 2" GAS MAIN AND REMOVE DOWNSTREAM

PIPING SHOWN HATCHED.  SEE P0 FOR GAS ISOMETRIC.

DEMO ALL SANITARY SEWER AND VENT PIPING ROUTED ABOVE THE FLOOR.  CAP VENT PIPE AT SEWER RISER AS

REQUIRED.  SAWCUT FLOOR AND REMOVE UNDERSLAB SANITARY WASTE PIPING BACK TO THE POINT WHERE IT

INCREASES TO 3" SANITARY SEWER AT THE DEMO WATER CLOSET-A.  SEE P3 FOR NEW WORK.

DEMO EXISTING UNDERSLAB SANITARY WASTE PIPING FROM DEMO URINAL BACK TO EXISTING UNDERSLAB 3"

SANITARY SEWER.  FIELD VERIFY.  COORDINATE SAWCUTS WITH G.C.

EXISTING CW MAIN SHUT OFF VALVE IN FLOOR ACCESS PANEL TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

11

12

13

14

16

15

17

18

19

20

21

22

(

E

)

S

S

(E)VTR

(D)WC

(D)WC

(D)UR

(D)WC

(D)LAV

(D)DF

(D)LAV

DEMO WASTE & VENT ISOMETRIC

NO SCALE

(

E

)

S

S

(E)VTR

(N)WC-3,

(TYP.2)

(N)SH-1,

(TYP.2)

(N)3" C.O.

(N)S-4 &

(N)AAV-1

(N)L-1 &

(N)AAV-1

(N)AAV-1

(N)S-2 &

(N)AAV-1,

(TYP.2)

(N)DW-1

(N)FS-1

(N)AAV-1

(N)2"

(N)3"

(N)3"

(N)3"

(N)3"

(N)2"

(N)L-1

(N)WC-1

(N)WC-2

(N)WC-1

(N)UR-1

(N)UR-1

(N)WC-1

(N)L-1 &

(N)AAV-1,

(TYP.2)

FS-1

(N)S-1 &

(N)AAV-1

ASSUMED LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERSLAB SANITARY SEWER ROUTED FROM THE EXISTING

SANITARY SEWER RISER IN THE BUILDING TO THE MANHOLE BEHIND THE BUILDING SHOWN FOR

REFERENCE ONLY.  SEE P1 FOR THE MANHOLE LOCATION.

EXISTING 4" SANITARY SEWER & VENT RISER TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.  SEE P1 FOR

CONTINUATION UP.

DEMO ALL EXISTING PLUMBING FIXTURES SHOWN HATCHED (WATER CLOSETS (WC), LAVATORIES

(LAV), URINAL (UR), AND DRINKING FOUNTAIN (DF).  DEMO ALL ASSOCIATED CW, HW, SANITARY

SEWER/WASTE AND VENT PIPING SHOWN HATCHED.  FOR DEMO WATER CLOSET-A REMOVE

FLOOR FLANGE AND CAP THE SANITARY SEWER BELOW THE FLOOR SURFACE.  FOR DEMO WATER

CLOSET-B REMOVE FLOOR FLANGE.  SAWCUT FLOOR AND REMOVE 3" ELBOW.  SEE P3 FOR NEW

WORK.

CAP EXISTING CW AND/OR HW ROUTED UNDERSLAB AT THE FLOOR PENETRATION AND REMOVE

ALL UNUSED PIPING ROUTED ABOVE THE FLOOR.  ALL EXISTING CW AND HW ROUTED UNDERSLAB

TO BE ABANDONED IN PLACE.

CAP EXISTING SANITARY SEWER AT THE FLOOR PENETRATION AND REMOVE ALL UNUSED PIPING

ROUTED ABOVE THE FLOOR.

DEMO CW AND HW PIPING (SHOWN HATCHED) ROUTED IN THE CEILING SPACE SERVING DEMO

FIXTURES ON THE MAIN LEVEL.

DEMO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER SERVING DEMO FIXTURES ON THE MAIN LEVEL BACK TO THIS

POINT.  EXISTING 3" SANITARY SEWER ROUTED FROM THIS POINT BACK TO THE EXISTING

SANITARY SEWER RISER TO REMAIN FOR RECONNECTION.  SEE P3 FOR NEW WORK.

DEMO EXISTING GAS FIRED WATER HEATER (WHG) AND ALL ASSOCIATED HW PIPING SHOWN

HATCHED.

CAP EXISTING 3/4" CW BRANCH JUST BEFORE THE EXISTING EXPANSION TANK (ET).  REMOVE THE

EXPANSION TANK AND SAVE FOR RELOCATION.  SEE P3 FOR NEW WORK.  DEMO THE CW BRANCH

ROUTED TO THE DEMO WATER HEATER (WHG) SHOWN HATCHED.

CAP EXISTING GRAVITY VENT AS INDICATED AND REMOVE VENT BACK TO DEMO WATER HEATER.

3

4

2

1

KEYNOTES

5

6

7

8

9

10

NEW WASTE & VENT ISOMETRIC

NO SCALE

WASTE & VENT NOTES:

1. DO NOT DOWNSIZE ANY 

WASTE OR VENT PIPING.

2. PROVIDE ALL WALL 

CLEANOUTS AS INDICATED.

3. REFERENCE STUDOR VENT

DESIGN CRITERIA .  INSTALL

ALL AIR ADMITTANCE VALVES

PER MANUFACTURER'S 

INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS.

CONNECT NEW 3" UNDERSLAB

SANITARY SEWER TO NEAREST

EXISTING 3" UNDERSLAB SANITARY

SEWER. FIELD VERIFY.

DEMO ALL

FIXTURES AND

ASSOCIATED

SANITARY

SEWER/WASTE

AND VENT PIPING

SHOWN HATCHED.

(TYPICAL)

CAP EXISTING WASTE &

VENT CONNECTIONS AT

EXISTING SANITARY

SEWER RISER AS

INDICATED. (TYPICAL)

(E)4"

(E)4"

(E)4"

(E)4"

(N)3"

(E)3"

(E)3"

(N)CWB-1 &

(N)AAV-1

23

CONNECT NEW 2" UNDERSLAB SANITARY

SEWER TO NEAREST EXISTING 3" UNDERSLAB

SANITARY SEWER. FIELD VERIFY.

CONNECT NEW 3" UNDERSLAB SANITARY

SEWER TO NEAREST EXISTING

3" UNDERSLAB SANITARY SEWER. FIELD

VERIFY.

(N)2"

(

N

)

S

W

(

E

)

S

S

(

N

)

S

S

(

N

)

S

S

(

N

)

S

S

(

N

)

S

S

(

N

)

S

W

(

N

)

S

W

(

N

)

S

S

(E)3"

(E)3"

(E)4"

(E)4"

(N)DW-1

(N)SP-1 &

(N)AAV-1

(N)2"

(N)1-1/2" WET VENT

(N)2"

(N)3"

(N)3"

(N)1-1/2"

(E)4"

CONNECT NEW 3" SANITARY

SEWER TO EXISTING 3" SANITARY

SEWER. FIELD VERIFY.

(N)AAV-1

(N)1-1/2"

(N)S-3

(N)3"

(N)AAV-1

(N)2"

CAP EXISTING

UNDERSLAB PIPING

FROM DEMO FIXTURES

AT THE FLOOR

PENETRATION AND

REMOVE UNUSED PIPING.

DEMO UNDERSLAB

SANITARY WASTE

PIPING BACK TO THE

NEAREST 3" UNDERSLAB

SANITARY SEWER.  FIELD

VERIFY.

DEMO UNDERSLAB

SANITARY WASTE

PIPING BACK TO THE

NEAREST 3" UNDERSLAB

SANITARY SEWER.

FIELD VERIFY.

(N)1-1/2"

(N)2"

(N)3"

(N)3"

(N)AAV-1

(N)L-1

(N)1-1/4"

(N)1-1/2"

(N)S-5 &

(N)AAV-1

(N)1-1/2"

GENERAL NOTES:

1. CAREFULLY COORDINATE ALL PLUMBING ROUTING AND PENETRATIONS TO AVOID CONFLICTS WITH

ARCHITECTURAL, STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, AND ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS.

2. SEE P3 FOR PLUMBING SPECIFICATIONS.

3. ALL PIPE PENETRATIONS THROUGH THE FLOORS AND ROOF SHALL BE WATER TIGHT.

4. SEE SHEET P0 FOR GAS ISOMETRIC AND P2 FOR WASTE & VENT ISOMETRIC.

5. SLOPE ALL SANITARY SEWER/WASTE PIPING 3" AND LARGER INSIDE BUILDING AT A MINIMUM OF 1/8'' PER FOOT.

SLOPE ALL SANITARY SEWER/WASTE PIPING 2-1/2" AND SMALLER AND ALL HORIZONTAL VENT PIPING AT 1/4" PER

FOOT.

6. FIELD VERIFY AND FIELD COORDINATE EXACT LOCATIONS, SIZE AND INVERT ELEVATIONS FOR NEW PIPING

CONNECTIONS SHOWN.

7. SEE PLUMBING FIXTURE CONNECTION SCHEDULE ON P0 FOR INDIVIDUAL PIPE SIZES TO EACH NEW FIXTURE

SHOWN.

8. PLUMBING COORDINATED TO 5 FEET OUTSIDE THE BUILDING FOOTPRINT.  SEE SITE PLAN FOR CONTINUATION AND

COORDINATE AS REQUIRED.

9. CONTRACTOR MUST KEEP A REDLINED SET OF DRAWINGS ON SITE SHOWING ANY PLUMBING/PIPING DEVIATIONS.

10. ALL DOMESTIC WATER VALVES SHALL MEET NSF 61.

11. PROVIDE ALL FLOOR AND WALL CLEAN OUTS AS REQUIRED BY CODE AND AS SHOWN.  COORDINATE LOCATIONS

WITH GENERAL CONTRACTOR.

12. RUN ALL PLUMBING TIGHT TO STRUCTURE AND ALONG BEAMS WHERE POSSIBLE.  COORDINATE WITH STRUCTURE.

13. COORDINATE ALL EQUIPMENT REQUIRING ELECTRICAL CONNECTIONS WITH ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR.

14. INSULATE ALL HW AND HWC PIPING PER THE 2015 IECC.

15. LABEL ALL NEW PIPING PER ANSI 13.1 (INCLUDE TYPE AND DIRECTION OF FLOW).

16. FIRESEAL ALL PENETRATIONS THROUGH FIRE RATED WALLS AND CEILINGS PER FIRE SEALING UL RATING.

COORDINATE WITH ARCHITECTURAL PLANS.

24

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 108 of 135



BEDROOM

BEDROOM

BEDROOM

BATH #1

BATH #2

KITCHEN

C
R

A
W

LS
P

A
C

E

LIVING

DINING

STORAGE

MECH.

LIVING UNIT

CLST

13

1

(E)3/4"

(
E

)
S

S

26

G
G

15

16

G G G G

(N)P-1

(N)IMB-1

(R)ET-1

(N)WHG-1

(N)DW-1

(N)HA-1

31

14

14

22

27

18

25

7

2

11

3

(

N

)

S

S

(N)SW

(N)SW

9

(N)1/2"

(N)1/2"

(N)3/4"

(N)1/2"

(N)1/2"

(N)1/2"

(N)3/4"

(N)2"

(N)1/2"

(N)2"

28

4

(N)1"

(N)1-1/2"

(N)3"

(N)3" 6

(N)2"

(N)3"

(N)2"

(
N

)
S

W

5

(N)CWB-1 &

(N)AAV-1

4

5

5

(N)S-4 &

(N)AAV-1

32

(N)1"

(N)1"

(N)3/4"

(N)1"

(N)3/4"

(N)1"

(N)3/4"

(N)1"

(N)1"

(N)1"

7(N)FS-1

8

(
N

)
S

W

12

(N)3"

(N)1/2" HW,

(N)1-1/2" SW,

 & 1" CW UP

(N)1/2" HW,

(N)1-1/2" SW,

 & 1/2" CW UP

16

16

17

19

20

21

2124

24

29

30

10

(N)AAV-133

(N)1"

(N)L-2 &

(N)TMV-1,

(TYP.2)

(N)SH-1,

(TYP.2)

(N)WC-3,

(TYP.2)

34

(
N

)
S

S

(N)SP-1 &

(N)AAV-1

(
N

)
S

S

(E)4"

NEW BEAM

23

(N)1-1/2" SW,

 (N)1/2" HW,

& 1/2" CW UP

DATE: 01/18/18

DRAWN BY: JLR
CHECKED BY: KLR

P.O. BOX 1554 BUENA VISTA, CO  81211
719.966.7570   303.952.0244

JKMECHANICALDESIGN@GMAIL.COM

C
O
L
O

RA DO  REGISTE
R
E
D

P
R
O
F

E
S S IO N A L  E N G

IN
E
E
R

K

I

R

K

 
R

O B

E

R

T

S

33719

JOB # 1802

F
IR

S
T
 B

A
P

T
IS

T
 C

H
U

R
C

H
4

19
 D

 S
TR

E
E

T
S

A
LI

D
A

, C
0

 8
12

0
1

NEW BASEMENT LEVEL PLUMBING PLAN

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

NORTH

GENERAL NOTES:

1. CAREFULLY COORDINATE ALL PLUMBING ROUTING AND PENETRATIONS TO AVOID CONFLICTS WITH

ARCHITECTURAL, STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, AND ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS.

2. SEE P3 FOR PLUMBING SPECIFICATIONS.

3. ALL PIPE PENETRATIONS THROUGH THE FLOORS AND ROOF SHALL BE WATER TIGHT.

4. SEE SHEET P0 FOR GAS ISOMETRIC AND P2 FOR WASTE & VENT ISOMETRIC.

5. SLOPE ALL SANITARY SEWER/WASTE PIPING 3" AND LARGER INSIDE BUILDING AT A MINIMUM OF 1/8'' PER FOOT.

SLOPE ALL SANITARY SEWER/WASTE PIPING 2-1/2" AND SMALLER AND ALL HORIZONTAL VENT PIPING AT 1/4" PER

FOOT.

6. FIELD VERIFY AND FIELD COORDINATE EXACT LOCATIONS, SIZE AND INVERT ELEVATIONS FOR NEW PIPING

CONNECTIONS SHOWN.

7. SEE PLUMBING FIXTURE CONNECTION SCHEDULE ON P0 FOR INDIVIDUAL PIPE SIZES TO EACH NEW FIXTURE

SHOWN.

8. PLUMBING COORDINATED TO 5 FEET OUTSIDE THE BUILDING FOOTPRINT.  SEE SITE PLAN FOR CONTINUATION AND

COORDINATE AS REQUIRED.

9. CONTRACTOR MUST KEEP A REDLINED SET OF DRAWINGS ON SITE SHOWING ANY PLUMBING/PIPING DEVIATIONS.

10. ALL DOMESTIC WATER VALVES SHALL MEET NSF 61.

11. PROVIDE ALL FLOOR AND WALL CLEAN OUTS AS REQUIRED BY CODE AND AS SHOWN.  COORDINATE LOCATIONS

WITH GENERAL CONTRACTOR.

12. RUN ALL PLUMBING TIGHT TO STRUCTURE AND ALONG BEAMS WHERE POSSIBLE.  COORDINATE WITH STRUCTURE.

13. COORDINATE ALL EQUIPMENT REQUIRING ELECTRICAL CONNECTIONS WITH ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR.

14. INSULATE ALL HW AND HWC PIPING PER THE 2015 IECC.

15. LABEL ALL NEW PIPING PER ANSI 13.1 (INCLUDE TYPE AND DIRECTION OF FLOW).

16. FIRESEAL ALL PENETRATIONS THROUGH FIRE RATED WALLS AND CEILINGS PER FIRE SEALING UL RATING.

COORDINATE WITH ARCHITECTURAL PLANS.

NEW BASEMENT
LEVEL
PLUMBING PLAN
&
SPECIFICATIONS

P3
4 OF 4

ASSUMED LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERSLAB SANITARY SEWER ROUTED FROM THE EXISTING

SANITARY SEWER RISER IN THE BUILDING TO THE MANHOLE BEHIND THE BUILDING SHOWN FOR

REFERENCE ONLY.  SEE P1 FOR THE MANHOLE LOCATION.

CONNECT NEW 3" SANITARY SEWER TO EXISTING 4" SANITARY SEWER & VENT RISER IN CEILING SPACE

AND ROUTE AS INDICATED.

CONNECT NEW 3" SANITARY SEWER TO EXISTING 3" CAST IRON SANITARY SEWER AT THIS POINT.  SEE

P2 FOR DEMO WORK.  ROUTE NEW 3" SANITARY SEWER IN CEILING SPACE AS INDICATED.  SEE WASTE &

VENT ISOMETRIC ON P2.

ROUTE NEW SANITARY SEWER/WASTE PIPING UP FROM BASEMENT CEILING SPACE TO SERVE MAIN

LEVEL FIXTURE ABOVE.  SIZE AS INDICATED.  SEE P1 FOR CONTINUATION UP.

ROUTE NEW CW, SANITARY SEWER/WASTE AND HW UP FROM CEILING SPACE TO SERVE MAIN LEVEL

FIXTURE ABOVE.  SIZE AS INDICATED.  SEE P1 FOR CONTINUATION UP.

ROUTE NEW 3" SANITARY SEWER DOWN INTO BASEMENT CEILING SPACE FROM RAISED FLOOR OF MAIN

LEVEL.  SEE P1 FOR CONTINUATION UP.  ROUTE AS HIGH AS POSSIBLE IN BASEMENT CEILING SPACE SO

THAT IT IS IN THE CLEAR SPACE ABOVE THE NEW BEAM.

CONNECT A NEW 3" UNDERSLAB SANITARY SEWER TO THE EXISTING 3" UNDERSLAB SANITARY

SEWER/WASTE AND ROUTE AS INDICATED.   FIELD VERIFY EXACT LOCATION, SIZE, AND INVERT

ELEVATION OF EXISTING SANITARY SEWER FOR NEW CONNECTION SHOWN.  COORDINATE REQUIRED

FLOOR SAWCUTS WITH G.C.  SEE NEW WASTE & VENT ISOMETRIC ON P2.

SEE PLUMBING FIXTURE CONNECTION SCHEDULE ON P0 FOR INDIVIDUAL PIPE SIZES TO EACH NEW

FIXTURE.  ROUTE CW AND/OR HW DOWN IN WALL FROM CEILING SPACE AND BRANCH IN WALL TO SERVE

FIXTURE(S) AS REQUIRED.  ROUTE NEW SANITARY SEWER/WASTE UNDERSLAB TO SERVE FIXTURE AS

REQUIRED.  COORDINATE REQUIRED SAWCUTS WITH G.C.  ROUTE VENT AS INDICATED.  (TYPICAL)

EXTEND THE NEW 3" SANITARY SEWER INTO THE MECHANICAL ROOM AND PROVIDE A CLEANOUT FOR

SERVICING.

CONNECT DISHWASHER DRAIN HOSE THROUGH HIGH LOOP DRAIN ATTACHED TO BOTTOM OF

COUNTERTOP.  SECURE TO 2" SP-1 STANDPIPE LOCATED IN THE BACK OF THE CABINET WITH AN AAV-1

AIR ADMITTANCE VALVE.    SEE STANDPIPE FOR DISHWASHER DETAIL ON P0.

CONNECT A NEW 2" UNDERSLAB SANITARY WASTE TO THE EXISTING 3" UNDERSLAB SANITARY SEWER

AND ROUTE TO NEW CWB-1 CLOTHES WASHER BOX AS INDICATED.  FIELD VERIFY EXACT LOCATION,

SIZE, AND INVERT ELEVATION OF EXISTING SANITARY SEWER FOR NEW CONNECTION SHOWN.

COORDINATE REQUIRED FLOOR SAWCUTS WITH G.C.  SEE NEW WASTE & VENT ISOMETRIC ON P2.

ROUTE 1/2" CW, 1/2" HW AND 2" SANITARY WASTE TO CWB-1 CLOTHES WASHER WALL BOX WITH AAV-1

MOUNTED IN THE WALL BOX.  CONNECT TO WASHING MACHINE AS REQUIRED.  PROVIDE 60" HOSES IF

WALL BOX IS LOCATED DIRECTLY BEHIND WASHING MACHINE.   CAREFULLY COORDINATE ALL PLUMBING

AND CLOTHES WASHER BOX LOCATION TO AVOID DRYER DUCT ROUTING.  SEE CWB-1 CLOTHES

WASHER WALL BOX DETAIL ON P0.

EXISTING 3/4" DOMESTIC CW SERVICE ROUTED UNDERGROUND FROM STREET MAIN TO BUILDING WITH

THE EXISTING WATER METER IN A PIT IN THE SIDEWALK OF E 4TH STREET TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

EXISTING IRRIGATION CONNECTIONS TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.  SEE P1 FOR EXISTING CW ABOVE

GRADE.

CAP EXISTING 3/4" CW JUST AFTER THE IRRIGATION BRANCH IN THE FLOOR ACCESS PANEL.  CONNECT

A NEW 3/4" CW & ROUTE UP TO THE CEILING SPACE.  PROVIDE A NEW SHUT OFF VALVE IN THE VERTICAL

PIPE IN AN ACCESSIBLE LOCATION AND INCREASE TO 1" CW.  ROUTE NEW 1" CW IN THE CEILING SPACE

AS INDICATED.   ABANDON EXISTING CW ROUTED UNDERSLAB.  SEE P2 FOR DEMO WORK.

ROUTE NEW CW UP FROM CEILING SPACE TO SERVE MAIN LEVEL FIXTURES ABOVE.  SIZE AS INDICATED.

SEE P1 FOR CONTINUATION UP.

ROUTE NEW 1/2" CW AND 1/2" HW DOWN IN WALL TO CONNECT TO NEW S-4 KITCHEN SINK.  TEE A 1/2" HW

IN WALL AND IN BACK OF CABINET TO CONNECT TO DW-1 DISHWASHER.  INSTALL A HA-1 POINT OF USE

WATER HAMMER ARRESTOR ON THE 1/2" HW LINE.

CAP EXISTING 3/4" CW AT THE BASEMENT FLOOR LEVEL WHERE IT PENETRATES INTO THE MECHANICAL

ROOM.  REMOVE EXISTING 3/4" CW ROUTED UP TO THE FIRST TEE.  CONNECT A NEW 3/4" CW TO THE

TEE SO THAT THE STEAM BOILER MAKE UP WATER IS CONNECTED TO THE NEW CW MAIN.

EXISTING STEAM BOILER NOT IN USE TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

EXISTING FUNCTIONING STEAM BOILER AND ASSOCIATED STEAM PIPING TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

EXISTING STEAM PIPING IS NOT SHOWN AS THERE IS NO NEW WORK ON THE STEAM PIPING SYSTEM.

EXISTING MAKE UP WATER PIPING FOR THE STEAM BOILER TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

EXISTING BACKFLOW PREVENTER FOR THE STEAM BOILER MAKE UP WATER TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

3

4

2

1

KEYNOTES

5

6

7

8

9

11

12

13

14

16

10

15

17

18

19

ROUTE NEW 1/2" CW, 1-1/2" SANITARY WASTE, AND 1/2" HW UP FROM CEILING SPACE TO SERVE MAIN

LEVEL FIXTURE ABOVE.  SIZE AS INDICATED.  SEE P1 FOR CONTINUATION UP.

SEE P2 FOR CAPPED CONNECTIONS REFERENCED ON THE DEMO PLAN.

EXISTING 2" GAS ROUTED UNDERGROUND FROM EXISTING 1000 CFH GAS METER LOCATED AT ADJACENT

PROPERTY TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

EXISTING 2" GAS ROUTED ABOVE GRADE AND INTO EXISTING COAL CHUTE AND INTO THE EXISTING

MECHANICAL ROOM CEILING SPACE TO REMAIN UNCHANGED.

CONNECT NEW 1-1/2" GAS TO EXISTING 2" GAS IN THE MECHANICAL ROOM CEILING SPACE.  ROUTE NEW

1-1/2" GAS OVER IN THE BASEMENT CEILING SPACE TO THE NEW WHG-1 GAS FIRED WATER HEATER AS

INDICATED.   SEE NEW GAS ISOMETRIC ON P0.

NEW WHG-1 GAS FIRED WATER HEATER WITH DRAIN PAIN INSTALLED ON THE FLOOR.  ROUTE A 1" CW

WITH RELOCATED EXPANSION TANK (R)ET-1 TO CONNECT TO WATER HEATER PER GAS FIRED WATER

HEATER CONNECTION DETAIL ON P0.  ROUTE A 1" 120 DEGREE HW UP AND OVER IN THE CEILING SPACE AS

INDICATED.  ROUTE CONDENSATE (WITH CONDENSATE NEUTRALIZING KIT) AND T&P VALVE DRAIN FROM

NEW WHG-1 GAS FIRED WATER HEATER TO NEW FS-1 FLOOR SINK WITH APPROVED AIR GAP PER

MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS AND GAS FIRED WATER HEATER CONNECTION DETAIL ON P0.

ROUTE 3" DIAMETER INTAKE AND EXHAUST AIR FROM NEW WHG-1 UP THROUGH THE ROOF.  USE 45

DEGREE ELBOWS WHERE REQUIRED AND TERMINATE THROUGH THE ROOF PER MANUFACTURER'S

RECOMMENDATIONS.  VERIFY THAT ACTUAL ROUTING DOES NOT EXCEED MANUFACTURER'S MAXIMUM

NUMBER OF 90 DEGREE ELBOWS & LENGTHS.  COORDINATE EXACT TERMINATION LOCATION WITH FIELD

CONDITIONS AND COORDINATE TERMINATION HEIGHT WITH LOCAL BUILDING DEPARTMENT

REQUIREMENTS.  MAINTAIN 3'-0" CLEAR FROM ROOF EDGE.

NEW P-1 SMARTPLUS RECIRCULATION PUMP.  SEE PUMP SCHEDULE AND GAS FIRED WATER HEATER

CONNECTION DETAIL ON P0.  ROUTE 1/2" HWC LINE FROM HWC PORT OF THE WATER HEATER AND

CONTINUE TO THE PUMP.  ROUTE A 1/2" HWC LINE FROM THE PUMP TO THE FURTHEST FIXTURE ON THE

HOT WATER LOOP.  BALANCE TO 1 GPM.

CONNECT 1/2" HW TO FURTHEST FIXTURE AS INDICATED.  HOT WATER LOOP TO BE ROUTED FROM WATER

HEATER AS INDICATED TO MAINTAIN THE SHORTEST BRANCH LEGS POSSIBLE TO EACH FIXTURE SERVED.

INSTALL A NEW AAV-1 AIR ADMITTANCE VALVE A MINIMUM OF 4" ABOVE THE HORIZONTAL BRANCH DRAIN

OR FIXTURE DRAIN AS INDICATED.  INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS.

ROUTE 2" COMMON VENT UP IN WALL FROM FIXTURE DRAIN.  ROUTE VENT OVER IN WALL FROM ADJACENT

FIXTURE(S) AND TERMINATE COMBINED VENT WITH AN AAV-1 AIR ADMITTANCE VALVE INSTALLED HIGH IN

THE CEILING SPACE AS INDICATED.  SEE NEW WASTE & VENT ISOMETRIC ON P2 FOR SIZES.

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

V. PLUMBING

· DOMESTIC WATER PIPING MATERIALS:

· CROSS-LINKED POLYETHYLENE (PEX) WITH A PRESSURE AND TEMPERATURE RATING OF 160 PSI AT 73 F, 100 PSI AT 180 F AND 80 PSI AT 200 F TUBING SHALL

HAVE A MINIMUM OF 6 MONTHS UV PROTECTION MANUFACTURED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM F876 AND ASTM F877 AND TESTED FOR COMPLIANCE BY AN

INDEPENDENT THIRD-PARTY AGENCY.  FITTINGS SHALL BE MANUFACTURED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM F1807 OR ASTM F2159 AND/OR COMPLY WITH ASTM

F877 SYSTEM STANDARD AS IDENTIFIED ON THE FITTING. CRIMP SYSTEMS SHALL BE LISTED TO ASTM F877, WITH COPPER CRIMP RING LISTED TO ASTM F1807

AND/OR ASTM F877.

· WHEN USING PEX, PROVIDE PIPE SUPPORT/HANGERS PER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS FOR MINIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN SUPPORTS.

· ALL PEX PIPING COMPONENTS TO BE FROM SAME MANUFACTURER.

· RUN PIPING AS DIRECT AS POSSIBLE TO REQUIRED CONNECTIONS, AND SLOPE TO DRAIN VALVES AT LOW POINTS FOR COMPLETE DRAINING OF SYSTEM.

LOCATE DRAIN VALVES AT ACCESSIBLE POINTS WITHIN THE SYSTEM.

SANITARY WASTE MATERIALS:

· ABS PLASTIC PIPE IN IPS DIAMETERS WITH A SOLID CELLULAR CORE OR COMPOSITE WALL.  ALL PIPE AND FITTINGS MUST CONFORM TO THE STANDARDS

LISTED IN THE 2015 IPC.  INSTALLATION SHALL COMPLY WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS AND THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE 2015 IPC.

SOLVENT CEMENT JOINTS SHALL BE MADE WITH A SOLVENT CEMENT CONFORMING TO ASTM D 2235. THE SYSTEM SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM CHEMICAL

AGENTS, FIRE-STOPPING MATERIALS, THREAD SEALANT, PLASTICIZED-VINYL PRODUCTS OR OTHER AGGRESSIVE CHEMICAL AGENTS NOT COMPATIBLE WITH

ABS COMPOUNDS. THE SYSTEM SHALL BE HYDROSTATICALLY TESTED AFTER INSTALLATION.

· ALL SANITARY WASTE PIPING SHALL BE SLOPED AT A MINIMUM 1/8" PER FOOT.

PLUMBING FIXTURES:  ALL FIXTURES AND TRIM SHALL BE NEW.  ALL FIXTURES ON THE MAIN LEVEL SHALL BE COMMERCIAL GRADE.

I. BASIC PLUMBING REQUIREMENTS

· FURNISH ALL LABOR AND MATERIALS AND PERFORM ALL OPERATIONS NECESSARY FOR THE INSTALLATION OF COMPLETE AND

FUNCTIONING PLUMBING SYSTEMS, AS SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED BY CODE.

· INSTALL ALL PLUMBING EQUIPMENT AND APPURTENANCES IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURERS' RECOMMENDATIONS,

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS,  APPLICABLE CODES, REGULATIONS, AND OWNER'S DESIGN AND TECHNICAL CRITERIA.

· COORDINATE AND ORDER THE PROGRESS OF PLUMBING WORK TO CONFORM TO THE OWNER'S SCHEDULE AND THE PROGRESS

OF THE WORK OF THE OTHER TRADES.

· COORDINATE ALL EQUIPMENT CONNECTIONS WITH MANUFACTURERS' CERTIFIED DRAWINGS AND/OR DOCUMENTS.

COORDINATE AND PROVIDE ALL PIPING TRANSITIONS REQUIRED FOR FINAL EQUIPMENT CONNECTIONS TO FURNISHED

EQUIPMENT.  FIELD VERIFY AND COORDINATE PIPING DIMENSIONS BEFORE FABRICATION.

· APPLY FOR AND PAY FOR ALL PERMITS, FEES, LICENSES AND INSPECTIONS FOR THIS DIVISION OF WORK.

· COMPLY WITH STATE AND LOCAL CODE REQUIREMENTS AND ORDINANCES. COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENTS OF THE UTILITY

COMPANIES.  IN THE CASE OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THESE REQUIREMENTS AND ORDINANCES, THE MOST STRINGENT SHALL

GOVERN.  CALL FOR INSPECTIONS REQUIRED BY LOCAL BUILDING INSPECTION AUTHORITY.

· THE LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES IS SHOWN IN AN APPROXIMATE WAY ONLY.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL

DETERMINE THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES BEFORE COMMENCING WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PAY FOR

AND REPAIR ALL DAMAGES CAUSED BY FAILURE TO EXACTLY LOCATE AND PRESERVE ANY AND ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

· MAINTAIN ONE SET OF REDLINED DRAWINGS ON THE JOB SITE INDICATING ALL CHANGES AND DEVIATIONS FROM THE WORK

SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS.  THESE DRAWINGS SHALL BE AVAILABLE TO THE BUILDING INSPECTOR UPON REQUEST

· PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE, THOROUGHLY CLEAN ALL WORK.

· AT COMPLETION OF WORK, DELIVER COMPLETED PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS MARKED WITH FIELD CHANGES TO OWNER.

· PROVIDE A WRITTEN WARRANTY TO THE OWNER COVERING THE ENTIRE PLUMBING WORK TO BE FREE FROM DEFECTIVE

MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT AND WORKMANSHIP FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR AFTER DATE OF ACCEPTANCE.

II.  BASIC MATERIALS AND METHODS

· THE PLUMBING DRAWINGS INDICATE THE GENERAL DESIGN AND ARRANGEMENT OF PIPING, EQUIPMENT, SYSTEMS, ETC.

INFORMATION SHOWN IS DIAGRAMMATIC IN CHARACTER AND DOES NOT INDICATE EVERY REQUIRED OFFSET, FITTING, ETC.

· THE LOCATIONS OF THE ITEMS SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS OR CALLED FOR IN THE SPECIFICATIONS THAT ARE NOT DEFINITELY

FIXED BY DIMENSIONS ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY.  THE EXACT LOCATIONS NECESSARY TO SECURE THE BEST CONDITIONS AND

RESULTS MUST BE DETERMINED BY THE PROJECT SITE CONDITIONS AND SHALL HAVE THE APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER

BEFORE BEING INSTALLED.  DO NOT SCALE THE DRAWINGS (UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE).

· WHERE STRUCTURE AND/OR BEAMS ARE INDICATED TO BE PENETRATED WITH PIPING, COORDINATE PIPING LAYOUT WITH

STRUCTURAL OPENINGS SIZE AND OPENING LOCATIONS.  COORDINATION SHALL BE DONE PRIOR TO CUTTING OF PIPING OR

FABRICATION OF STRUCTURE.

· USE ADJUSTABLE PIPE HANGERS ON SUSPENDED PIPE.  PROVIDE HANGERS TO SUPPORT THE SYSTEMS WITHOUT SAGGING.

INCLUDE HANGERS AT EACH OFFSET OR CHANGE IN DIRECTION AND AT ENDS OF BRANCHES OVER FIVE FEET IN LENGTH.

REFER TO MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS FOR MINIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN SUPPORTS.

· PROTECT ALL INSULATED PIPE AT POINT OF SUPPORT WITH A 360-DEGREE INSULATION INSERT.

· SLEEVES:  SCHEDULE 40 GALVANIZED STEEL PIPE SIZED LARGE ENOUGH TO ALLOW FOR MOVEMENT AND FOR CONTINUOUS

INSULATION.  FIRE STOPPING SLEEVES BY PROSET MAY BE USED IN FIRE-RATED CONSTRUCTION.  SHEET METAL SLEEVES ARE

NOT PERMITTED.  SLEEVES USED BELOW GRADE AND FOR PENETRATION OF WATER PROOFED WALLS SHALL CONTAIN

INTEGRAL WATER STOP.

· SLEEVES AND BOXES SHALL BE PROVIDED WHEREVER PIPES PASS THROUGH FLOOR, WALL AND ROOF CONSTRUCTION.

· WHERE HORIZONTAL PIPES PASS THROUGH WALLS AND VERTICAL PIPES PASS THROUGH FLOORS OR ROOFS, SEAL OFF

VOID BETWEEN OPENING AND PIPE AND SLEEVE.

· INSTALL NICKEL-PLATED FLOOR, WALL AND CEILING ESCUTCHEONS OF ADJUSTABLE TYPE ON PIPES PASSING THROUGH

WALLS, FLOOR OR CEILING IN FINISHED AREAS.

· FURNISH AND INSTALL ALL BASES AND SUPPORTS.

· REINFORCEMENT, DETAILING, AND PLACEMENT OF CONCRETE SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM 315 AND ACI 318.  CONCRETE SHALL

CONFORM TO ASTM C94.  CONCRETE WORK SHALL CONFORM TO ACI 318, PART ENTITLED "CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS".

· PROVIDE SHUT-OFF VALVES AND UNIONS SUITABLY LOCATED TO ISOLATE EACH ITEM OF EQUIPMENT.

· TEST PIPING SYSTEMS PRIOR TO CONCEALMENT.

· PROVIDE STRUCTURAL WORK AND EQUIPMENT REQUIRED TO CONTROL EXPANSION AND CONTRACTION OF PIPING.

· VALVES AND CLEANOUTS SHALL BE INSTALLED AS SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS AND AS REQUIRED BY CODE.

· ALL VALVES SHALL BE INSTALLED SO THAT VALVE REMAINS IN SERVICE WHEN EQUIPMENT OR PIPING ON EQUIPMENT SIDE OF

VALVE IS REMOVED.

· ALL BALANCING VALVES SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH POSITION INDICATORS AND MAXIMUM ADJUSTABLE STOPS (MEMORY STOPS).

· ALL VALVES (EXCEPT CONTROL VALVES) AND STRAINERS SHALL BE FULL SIZE OF PIPE BEFORE REDUCING SIZE TO MAKE

CONNECTIONS TO EQUIPMENT AND CONTROLS.

· INSTALL ALL PIPING WITHOUT FORCING OR SPRINGING.

· ALL VALVES SHALL BE ADJUSTED FOR SMOOTH AND EASY OPERATION.

· ALL CLEANOUTS SHALL BE FULL SIZE OF PIPE.

· PROVIDE ACCESS PANELS FOR INSTALLATION IN WALLS AND CEILINGS, WHERE REQUIRED, TO SERVICE VALVES AND OTHER

CONCEALED PLUMBING EQUIPMENT.  ACCESS PANELS SHALL BE TURNED OVER TO GENERAL CONTRACTOR FOR INSTALLATION.

LOCATE ALL PLUMBING EQUIPMENT FOR UNOBSTRUCTED ACCESS TO UNIT ACCESS PANELS, CONTROLS AND VALVING.

· ALL OPENINGS IN FIREWALLS DUE TO PIPING, CONDUIT, ETC., SHALL BE FIRE STOPPED WITH A PRODUCT SIMILAR TO 3M OR

APPROVED EQUAL.

· ALL PIPING SHALL CLEAR DOORS AND WINDOWS.

III. PLUMBING IDENTIFICATION

· IDENTIFY PIPING AND VALVES ABOVE CEILINGS, AS WELL AS EXPOSED TO VIEW EXCEPT IN FINISHED AREAS.  CONFORM TO ANSI

A13.1.

IV.  INSULATION

· FURNISH AND INSTALL INSULATION FOR ALL PIPING SYSTEMS PER 2015 IECC.

DIVISION 15 - MECHANICAL SPECIFICATIONS

20

21

22

ROUTE NEW 1-1/2" COMMON VENT FROM FIXTURE DRAIN UP IN WALL.  TERMINATE WITH

AN AAV-1 AIR ADMITTANCE VALVE INSTALLED HIGH IN THE CEILING SPACE AS

INDICATED.  SEE NEW WASTE & VENT ISOMETRIC ON P2.

ROUTE 1/2" CW DOWN IN WALL TO CONNECT TO NEW IMB-1 ICE MAKER WALL BOX.

CONNECT TO REFRIGERATOR/FREEZER AS REQUIRED.

34

33

23

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 109 of 135



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: June 19, 2018: 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. - 3.
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Recreation & Aquatic Center 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Theresa Casey 

ITEM:  
Citizen appointments to the Recreation Advisory Board (RAB) – Resolution 2018-30 

BACKGROUND: 
The RAB is made up of five regular members and two alternates. The current make-up of the RAB 
is as follows: 
Member         Term Expires 
Diana Porter - Co-Chair             3/2019 
Lisa DeYoung – Co-Chair      3/2018 
Andrea Carlstrom              3/2019 
Julie Mach             3/2019 
Connie Goscinski        3/2019 
Alternates 
Daryl Huschka         3/2019 
Lee James        3/2018 

At the May 21st and June 4th worksessions Council interviewed two applicants who wish to return to 
the board one as a regular member and one as an alternate member. 
FISCAL NOTE: 
NA 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

A Council person should make a motion to approve Resolution 2018-30, a resolution of the City 
Council of the City of Salida, Colorado approving the following appointments to the Recreation 
Advisory Board. 

1. ______________________ as a regular member term to expire March 2020
2. ______________________ as an alternate member term to expire March 2020

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 110 of 135



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 30 

(Series 2018) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, 
APPROVING CITIZEN APPOINTMENTS TO THE RECREATION ADVISORY 
BOARD PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-14-10 OF THE SALIDA MUNICIPAL CODE. 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2-14-10 of the Salida Municipal Code the City Council 
shall select and appoint person(s) to serve as members of the Salida Recreation Advisory Board; 
and 

WHEREAS, there currently exists one vacant regular position and one alternate position on the 
Recreation Advisory Board; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 2-14-10 of the Salida Municipal Code the City Council 
shall confirm the appointments by majority vote. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SALIDA, COLORADO THAT: 

1.  The City Council incorporates the forgoing recitals as findings by the City Council. 
2. The Council hereby appoints the following individual(s) to serve on the Recreation 

Advisory Board: 
a. ____________________as a regular member, term to expire March 2020. 

 
b. ____________________as an alternate member, term to expire March 2020.  

 

RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of June, 2018. 

                                                                        CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

     By ____________________________ 

      Mayor PT Wood 

 

[Seal] 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

City Clerk 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 111 of 135



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: June 19, 2018: 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. - 4.
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

Larry Lorentzen 

ITEM:  
Resolution 2018-31-A resolution of the City Council for the City of Salida, Colorado approving an amended 
Fee Schedule for Short Term Rental Business Licenses. 

BACKGROUND: 
At the worksession of June 4th, staff provided Council with an estimate of time spent annually on managing 
the short term business licenses, broken down per license basis.  Staff recommended amending the fee 
schedule to $150.00 for new licenses and $100.00 for renewals. 

FISCAL NOTE: 

There are currently 146 Short Term Rental business licenses which will generate $14,600 annually for 
renewals.  In addition new licenses will trickle at an expected rate of one or two a month for an additional 
expected revenue of $3,000 if fees for new and renewal licenses are set at $150.00 and $100.00 respectively. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of this resolution with fees set at $150.00 for new licenses and $100.00 for 
renewals.   

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
I move to approve Resolution No. 2018-31, a resolution of the City Council of the City of Salida, Colorado 
approving an amended  short-term rental business license fee schedule with the fee for a new license at 
$____ and the fee for a renewal at $_____. 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 112 of 135

llorentzen
Highlight

llorentzen
Highlight



RESOLUTION 2018-31 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, 
COLORADO UPDATING SHORT TERM RENTAL BUSINESS LICENSE 

FEE SCHEDULE. 

WHEREAS, the Salida Municipal Code establishes rules and regulations for 
operations of the City and provides for the establishment of fees for various City services; 

WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted Article V to Chapter 6 of the 
Salida Municipal Code establishing  business licensing for short-term rentals, and 

WHEREAS, the Salida City Council finds it in the best interest of the citizens to 
establish fees for new and renewing short-term rental business licenses, along with 
penalties for late renewals and operating without a license; and 

WHEREAS, the Salida City Council wishes to adopt the updated Fee Schedule 
attached hereto as the official fee schedule for the operation of Short Term Rentals 
within the City of Salida as regulated by Chapter Six of the Salida Municipal Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORATO THAT: 

1. The Salida City Council incorporates the foregoing recitals as its conclusions, facts,
determinations, and findings.

2. The City Council hereby approves the Fee Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit A,
for Short Term Rental Business Licenses within the City of Salida to become
effective upon adoption.

RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of June, A.D. 2018.

CITY OF SALIDA 

By: 
[SEAL] P.T. Wood, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 113 of 135



Exhibit A – Resolution 2018-31 

2018 Fees and Charges for Short Term Rental 
Business Licenses - Salida Municipal Code 

Chapter 6  

TYPE OF LICENSE FEE 

Short-Term Rental Business License (SMC 6-5) 
Short-term Rental Business License – New $_______ 
Short-term Rental Business License – Renewal $_______ 
Late Fee on Renewal* $10.00 
Penalty for Operating without a Business License $1,000.00 

* Late Fee applicable to Short Term Rentals in Commercial Districts only.  Residential Districts have caps on
the number of Short Term Rentals and failure to renew on time results in loss of license.  A new license would
have to be applied for and which may not be available.

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 114 of 135

llorentzen
Highlight

llorentzen
Highlight

llorentzen
Highlight



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: June 19, 2018: 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. - 5.
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

Larry Lorentzen 

ITEM:  
Resolution 2018-32, A resolution of the City Council for the City of Salida, Colorado Certifying Ballot 
Language for a Special  Election to be Held on September 25, 2018, Regarding the City’s Sales Tax Revenue 
Distribution to the Economic Development Fund 

 BACKGROUND: 
At the November 8, 2016 election the voters approved an initiated ordinance to create a number of new funds 
including an Economic Development Fund and to distribute up to 2% of the City’s 3% sales tax to this fund. 

The Economic Development Fund is to be used for among other things, the creation of affordable housing. 
As the Council has found in trying to facilitate the creation of affordable housing by reducing plant investment 
fees for a development and backfilling the Water/Wastewater Enterprise from the Economic Development 
Fund, two percent of the sales tax is going to be inadequate to meet the goals of Council in making affordable 
housing projects happen. 

The 2018 budget predicts a revenue of $57,500 for each 1% of sales tax.  Therefore raising the allowed 
distribution amount which could be budgeted each year will result in the following revenues to the Economic 
Development Fund 

2% as budgeted …. $115,000 
3%  ………………..  $172,500 
5%..........................  $287,500 
10% ……………….  $575,000 

FISCAL NOTE: 
Any additional sales tax revenue distributed to the Economic Development Fund will result in a lesser 
amount available to distribute to the other City Funds.  The language is for “up to” an amount so the Council 
does not have to put in whatever is approved but will have the flexibility to determine the actual amount 
each year at budget time. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of this resolution with Council determining the appropriate percentage to fill in 
the blank. 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 115 of 135



   REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION    
                                                                                                                               Meeting Date: June 19, 2018: 
  
    
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. - 4.  
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Administration 

PRESENTED BY: 

Larry Lorentzen 

  

    

 
 

 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
I move to approve Resolution No. 2018-32, a resolution of the City Council of the City of Salida, Colorado 
Certifying Ballot Language for a Special  Election to be Held on September 25, 2018 Regarding the City’s 
Sales Tax Revenue  Distribution to the Economic Development Fund and Setting the Amount at Up To 
_____%. 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 116 of 135



 
 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO. 32 

(Series of 2018) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
CERTIFYING BALLOT LANGUAGE FOR A SPECIAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON 
SEPTEMBER 25, 2018, REGARDING THE CITY'S SALES TAX REVENUE 
DISTRIBUTION TO THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND 

 
WHEREAS, the distribution of sales tax to various City Funds was approved by the 

voters at the November 8, 2016 election; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Salida Municipal Code states up to 2% of the proceeds received from 

the City’s 3% sales tax shall be allocated to the economic development fund to be used, as 
approved by City Council, for economic development purposes. 

 
WHEREAS, “economic development purposes” includes, but is not limited to, the 

creation of affordable and sustainable housing; and 
 
WHEREAS, affordable housing is a high priority of the Salida city council and funding 

in excess of the 2% allocation may be necessary to reasonably facilitate the creation of affordable 
housing; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to certify and approve ballot language regarding  

the distribution of sales tax to the Economic Development Fund at the Special Election to be held 
on September 25, 2018. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO THAT: 
 

1. The Salida City Council incorporates the foregoing recitals as its conclusions, 
facts, determinations, and findings. 

 
2. The City Council approves the following ballot question, the form and language, 

to be placed on the ballot at the Special Election to be held on September 25, 
2018: 

 
Shall the City of Salida amend Section 4-3-50(c) of the Salida Municipal 
Code concerning the disposition of revenue to read as follows? 

 
Sec. 4-3-50. Disposition of Revenue. 

 
(c) Up to ______ percent (__%) of the proceeds received from the three percent (3%) sales 

tax imposed by the City of Salida shall be allocated to the Economic Development Fund 
to be used, as approved by City Council, for Economic Development purposes. 
"Economic Development purposes" includes, but is not limited to, the creation of 
affordable and sustainable housing and to the support of efforts to improve the standard  
of  living of the community through the creation of jobs, the support of innovation  and 
new ideas,  the creation of greater net wealth; and the improvements to quality of life. 

 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 117 of 135



 
 
 
 

RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 19th day of June, A.D. 2018. 
 

 
CITY OF SALIDA 

 
 

By:   
[SEAL] P.T. Wood, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 118 of 135



  REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
  Meeting Date: June 19, 2018: 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 

VI. - 6.
ORIGINATING DEPARTMENT: 

Community Development 

PRESENTED BY: 

 Glen Van Nimwegen 

ITEM:  
Approval of Resolution 2018-33 approving a Memorandum of Understanding with Community 
Builders regarding the Highway 50 Corridor Plan. 

BACKGROUND: 
Resolution 2018-11 was approved by City Council on February 20, 2018 supporting a grant request 
with Community Builders and providing matching funds of $25,000 from the Economic Development 
Fund.  The grant was approved on April 6, 2018.  Since then the Mayor and staff have been working 
with representatives of Community Builders to develop a scope of work and memorandum of 
understanding (MOU) for the project.  The MOU sets the goals, objectives and planning process for 
FISCAL NOTE: 
Resolution 2018-11 appropriated $25,000 from the Economic Development Fund as a match for the 
grant. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution 2018-33 approving a Memorandum of Understanding 
with Community Builders regarding the Highway 50 Corridor Plan. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

A Council person should make the motion to “Approve Resolution 2018-33 approving a 
Memorandum of Understanding with Community Builders regarding the Highway 50 Corridor 
Plan.” 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 119 of 135



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO.  33  

(Series 2018) 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH 
COMMUNITY BUILDERS REGARDING THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE GRANT 
TO PLAN FOR THE FUTURE OF THE HIGHWAY 50 CORRIDOR. 
 

WHEREAS, because of the opportunities within the Highway 50 corridor for the reuse 
of existing sites for housing and economic development activities, and the desire to keep this 
important corridor a viable retail generator for Salida, the Council requested staff to create a plan 
for the potential of the corridor; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved Resolution 2018-11 on February 20, 2018 

supporting a grant request of Community Builders, a nonprofit 501.C3 organization that helps 
communities make tangible progress on specific livability goals, to develop a plan for the future 
of the Highway 50 corridor; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2018-11 also committed $25,000 of Economic Development 

Funds as a match for the planning effort; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Salida was approved for the technical assistance grant and a 

Memorandum of Understanding has been prepared to define the planning process and roles of 
Community Builders and the City of Salida. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council for the City of Salida 

that: 
  Section 1.  The City Council approves the Memorandum of Understanding with 

Community Builders, attached hereto as Exhibit A, to complete the technical assistance 
project addressing the Highway 50 corridor and authorize the Community Development 
Director to sign said MOU. 
 
 

RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 19th day of June, 2018. 
 
  
 CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
 
 
 
 ________________________ 
 Mayor P.T. Wood 

 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 120 of 135



City of Salida, Colorado 
Resolution No. 33, Series of 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
City Clerk 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 121 of 135



Exhibit A:  MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: 
COMMUNITY BUILDERS TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 

Hwy 50 Corridor Project, Salida, CO 

MOU: City of Salida, CO; Community Builders Page 1 of 6 

SECTION 1. OVERVIEW 
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made and entered into by and between the City of Salida 
(herein referred to as “the City”), Colorado and Community Builders (herein referred to as “CB”) to 
complete a technical assistance project (herein referred to as “the Project”) addressing the Highway 50 
corridor. The Project will be funded through the Community Builders assistance program, as well as 
through a financial contribution from the Town (refer to Section 7). 

The City and CB agree to work together in a collaborative spirit and negotiate in good faith on all tasks 
and deliverables required for the Project, and any required tasks after completion of the Project. If at 
any time CB or the City is failing to fulfill the obligations outlined within this MOU, the right is reserved 
to modify or end the project. CB, as the administrator of the technical assistance, agrees to work with a 
consultant or consultants (to be selected in later part of phase two of the project) to provide the 
assistance and will develop a separate contract with them to pay for said assistance. 

SECTION 2. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
Completion of three primary goals will determine project success: 

1. Work directly with citizens, project partners, local businesses, and stakeholders to create a
community-led vision for the future of Hwy 50 corridor.

2. Organize community leaders through a Community Advisory Committee in order to increase
civic capacity, create community ownership of the project, and change the process in which the
community dialogues about growth in the future.

3. Develop a set of technical recommendations and an action plan for implementing the
community’s vision that can be codified and incorporated into future plans, policies, and
actions.

Principal Objectives: 
• Public Engagement. Public engagement is a vital aspect of this project. Outreach methods

should focus on creating authentic and meaningful opportunities for the public to participate.
Engagement opportunities should be transparent, well-communicated, and diverse—allowing
the Salida community a multitude of options through which to engage and provide input.
Strategies like focus groups, questionnaires, visual preference surveys, neighborhood meetings,
pop-up events, and online or text-message based engagement opportunities will all be
considered in addition to more traditional public meetings, and will be utilized based on project
need and organizing capacity of local partners. Clearly demonstrating how public input has
shaped the outcomes of the project is also an important success factor.

• Community Leadership and Buy-In. Developing a group of local leaders that can organize,
educate, and build momentum in the community is crucial for both creating and moving forward
a community vision. In order for this project to be successful, it is important that the larger
Salida community feels a degree of ownership and buy-in for the project. Developing a core
group of local community leaders who can steer the process, guide the dialogue, and champion
the project will be key for creating an implementable vision that balances community needs.

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 122 of 135



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: 
COMMUNITY BUILDERS TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 

Hwy 50 Corridor Project, Salida, CO 
 

 
MOU: City of Salida, CO; Community Builders Page 2 of 6 

• Striking a Balance. The Salida community has expressed a need for affordable housing, 
economic development, safety, and job growth. They have also expressed the importance of 
preserving the community character that makes Salida authentically Salida. This project will 
focus on strategies and recommendations that satisfy both needs—strengthening the economy 
and increasing quality of life while preserving and enhancing Salida’s uniqueness and character. 

 
• Inclusivity. This project will strive to create a vision and process that include a diverse and 

representative array of voices from the community. Engagement efforts will go well beyond the 
format of a typical public meetings, focusing on outreach efforts that bring a diverse mix of 
Salidans into the process and targeting groups that haven’t typically been included in past public 
processes. While Community Builders will assist with planning and organizing such efforts, the 
PMT and CAC will ultimately be responsible for the final execution of outreach and engagement 
efforts.  

 
• Balancing Long-Term Vision and Actionable Goals. While the community visioning process 

typically focuses on developing a long-term vision for a community’s future, identifying quick 
wins and developing goals that are achievable within the short-term are important for catalyzing 
change and maintaining community momentum. The community process for this project should 
allow for long-term visioning, while gradually building a focus on near-term goals that are 
actionable. 

 

SECTION 3. PROJECT PHASING AND KEY TASKS 
 

Phase I: Project Development 
Approximate Timeframe: May 2018 – July 2018 
Phase I will consist of the following key tasks: 
Task 1: Execute Partnership Agreements. 

• Identify, engage and gain commitment from project partners to serve on the Project 
Management Team (PMT). 

• Develop and finalize the Scope of Work (SOW). 
• Develop and finalize this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). 

Task 2: Establish Salida Community Advisory Committee. 
• Identify, engage and gain commitment from Salida community leaders to serve on the project’s 

Community Advisory Committee (CAC). 
• Establish the roles and responsibilities of the PMT and CAC. 

Task 3: Project Kick-Off. 
• Conduct two or more conference calls between key members of the PMT, CAC, and CB to 

introduce the project, solidify approach to engagement, and begin project planning and 
timelining. 

• Develop, organize, and execute Learning Workshop(s) for CAC and PMT to engage in facilitated 
learning around key concepts  

 
 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 123 of 135



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: 
COMMUNITY BUILDERS TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 

Hwy 50 Corridor Project, Salida, CO 
 

 
MOU: City of Salida, CO; Community Builders Page 3 of 6 

Task 4: Develop a Community Outreach and Engagement Plan. 
• Develop and finalize a Community Outreach and Engagement Plan (COEP) detailing how the 

project and partners will engage, communicate with, and organize within the community. 
• Establish a project identity that creates a cohesive “brand” around the project and informs how 

to talk about the project to the public. 
• Involve the CAC in developing and finalizing said COEP. 

 
Phase II: Community Visioning 
Approximate Timeframe: July 2018 – September 2018 
Phase II will consist of the following key tasks: 
Task 1: Begin Implementation of the COEP. 

• Communications and outreach tasks identified for this timeframe will be executed by all partners. 
• Engagement tasks identified for this timeframe will be executed by the PMT and CAC with 

assistance from CB. 
• Begin engaging and building partnerships within the CAC and the community by understanding 

their values, vision and goals for Hwy 50 corridor. 
• Understand stakeholder concerns for the project area. 
• Generate community momentum, buy-in, and ownership of the project through inclusive, 

transparent, and robust outreach and engagement. 
Task 2: Community Visioning Workshop(s). 

• CB will assist in developing, organizing, and executing a Community Visioning Workshop that 
builds upon previous engagement work and generates a preliminary community vision for the 
corridor. 

• Additional outreach, engagement, or workshops may be used in this period if needed in order to 
craft a cohesive community vision and generate buy-in. 

Task 3: Synthesize Community Vision 
• Synthesize input gained and work with CAC to craft a written community vision for the corridor, 

including a set of goals to guide phase three of the Project. 
• If needed, conduct additional community outreach and engagement to vet the vision and goals 

with the community. 
 
 
Phase III: Technical Planning and Report Development 
Approximate Timeframe: September 2018 – October 2018 
Phase III will consist of the following key tasks: 
Task 1: Select and Hire Consultant(s). 

• Work with PMT to select appropriate consultants to help address community vision and goals 
with technical recommendations. 

• Develop and finalize independent contract between selected consultant and CB. 
Task 2: Strategy Workshop with PMT, CAC, stakeholders. 

• Develop and conduct a Strategy Workshop with PMT, CAC, and key stakeholders to develop 
ideas for specific strategies. Workshop may involve selected consultant depending upon need. 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 124 of 135



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: 
COMMUNITY BUILDERS TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 

Hwy 50 Corridor Project, Salida, CO 
 

 
MOU: City of Salida, CO; Community Builders Page 4 of 6 

Task 3: Community Design Workshop 
• Develop and conduct a Community Design Workshop where CB and consultants develop 

technical details and visual aids for strategies identified during the Strategy Workshop and vet 
strategies and details with the PMT, CAC, stakeholders, and the larger community. 

Task 4: Report Development. 
• CB to develop final report with assistance from the City, PMT, CAC, and consultants. Report to 

include final project recommendations detailing process, findings, and action plan for 
implementation. This may include; a summary of community engagement and resulting vision, 
conceptual corridor design and land use recommendations, recommendations for policy and 
regulatory revisions to support the vision for the corridor, and a tailored action plan detailing 
next steps. These recommendations will be drafted and compiled by Community Builders into a 
format that is concise, communicative, and accessible to the community. 

• The City will, with assistance from CB and consultants, adapt language, concepts, and materials 
from the report and project to be codified where possible or adopted for use in a future 
comprehensive plan. 

 

SECTION 4. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
Community Builders 
The following shall be the roles and responsibilities of Community Builders: 
 

• CB will serve as the project lead and manager for the overall project. 
• CB will manage the overall execution of project tasks described in Section III of this 

Memorandum. 
• CB will engage, approve budgets for, and establish independent contracts with consultants with 

the technical expertise necessary for achieving the desired project outcomes. 
• CB will be responsible for invoicing the City for services and materials rendered, up to but not 

exceeding $25,000. 
• CB will be responsible for coordinating the nature and timing of consultant involvement with the 

project. 
• CB will participate in project calls with project stakeholders as necessary. 
• CB will assist with coordination of outreach and logistics of community engagement events and 

attend as many as the budget allows. 
• CB will assist with preparation and format of the project report. CB will address one round of 

report edits in coordination with the City and other local partners. 
• CB will make every effort to complete assigned tasks and deliverables within the agreed upon 

timelines. If tasks and deliverables cannot be completed per agreed upon timelines, CB will work 
with the City on a mutually agreeable extension deadline. 

• The project manager from CB will be Bud Tymczyszyn. CB staff will provide additional expertise 
and support where needed. 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 125 of 135



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: 
COMMUNITY BUILDERS TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 

Hwy 50 Corridor Project, Salida, CO 
 

 
MOU: City of Salida, CO; Community Builders Page 5 of 6 

City of Salida 
The following shall be the roles and responsibilities of the City of Salida: 
 

• The City will lead the identification of stakeholders and will be responsible for coordinating 
the nature and timing of their engagement in the project, with input from CB. 

• The City will participate in project calls with project stakeholders as necessary. 
• Staff from the City will be made available as necessary to provide CB with necessary support 

to advance the project tasks and deliverables. 
• The City will be responsible for providing CB with information about related planning efforts 

and mapping data. 
• The City will be responsible for co-coordinating the logistics of community engagement 

events including (1) reserving and setting up venues; and (2) providing materials for events 
as needed, which may include tables, chairs, audio/visual equipment, maps, flip charts, 
easels, pens, markers and light refreshments. 

• The City will solicit volunteers for the workshops, events, and engagement opportunities. 
• The City will expedite and assist with any permitting for events, meetings, or engagement 

opportunities..  
• The City will be responsible for leading the preparation and distribution of marketing 

materials for community engagement events. CB will assist as necessary. 
• The City will review and provide comments on the report. 
• The City will provide CB with progress reports in memorandum format describing the 

implementation of any strategies or programs arising from the technical assistance.  
• City staff should expect to commit 10 – 15 hours per week executing project tasks.  
• The project manager from the City will be Glen VanNimwegen. 

Selected Consultant 
A separate MOU and contractual agreement will be developed between CB and the consultant upon 
consultant selection in phase three of the Project. 

 

SECTION 4. DEDICATION OF RESOURCES 
In addition to the financial resources Community Builders is dedicating to the project, the City of Salida 
will provide $25,000 that can be used for materials needed for meetings and engagement activities, 
consultant or Community Builders staff costs, travel costs, facility rental costs or refreshments. CB and 
the City will conduct budget check-in phone conferences throughout phases two through four of the 
Project on an as-needed basis upon request by either party. 
 
 
 

{signatures next page} 
 
 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 126 of 135



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING: 
COMMUNITY BUILDERS TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 

Hwy 50 Corridor Project, Salida, CO 
 

 
MOU: City of Salida, CO; Community Builders Page 6 of 6 

 
This MOU may be modified by mutual agreement of the parties. This agreement may be terminated only 
by mutual agreement of the parties, except in cases where either party is failing to fulfill the obligations 
outlined within this MOU. 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Glen VanNimwegen, City of Salida 
 
__________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Jillian Sutherland, Community Builders 
 
__________________________________________ 
Date 
 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 127 of 135



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION  NO. 34 

(Series of 2018) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, 

APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY 

AND PERSONNEL DECISIONS INTERNATIONAL. 

 
WHEREAS, the City is undergoing an extensive search to recruit and hire a new City 

Administrator; and 

 
WHEREAS, Harry Brull, a Salida resident, has offered his expertise on behalf of his 

company BCG Consulting group, LLP", a national executive recruiting firm, to assist the City in 
its search free of charge; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Salida City Council wishes to acknowledge Mr. Brull's generous offer of 

support and to approve a Professional Services Agreement detailing the terms of the relationship 
between BCG Consulting Group and the City. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SALIDA, COLORADO THAT: 

 
1. The Salida City Council incorporates the foregoing recitals as its conclusions, facts, 

determinations, and findings. 

 
2. The City Council hereby approves the Professional Services Agreement between 

the City and BCG Consulting Group and authorizes the Acting City Administrator to execute the 
Agreement on behalf of the City. 

 
RESOLVED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ___

  day of ________ 2018. 
 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 
l--------------- 

Mayor 
 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

Deputy City Clerk·

By 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 128 of 135



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
This PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (hereinafter  "Agreement")  is  made this 

_____ 
day of _________, 2018 by and between THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, a Colorado 

municipal corporation (the "City"),  and  BCG Consulting Group. LLP INTERNATIONAL, a 
Minnesota partnership (hereinafter "Contractor"). 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Salida desires that Contractor assist the City with recruitment and 

selection of a new City Administrator as an independent contractor, in accordance with the provisions 

of this Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, Contractor desires to perform such duties pursuant to the terms and conditions 

provided for in this Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to set forth certain understandings regarding the 

services in writing. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants contained herein, the 

parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Services. The City agrees to retain Contractor to provide the services set forth 

herein, and as further specified in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, 

and as specified herein ("Services"), and Contractor agrees to so serve. Specifically, Contractor 

agrees to assist the City in recruiting, identifying, and selecting a new City Administrator. 

Contractor warrants and represents that it has the requisite authority, capacity, experience, and 

expertise to perform the Services in compliance with the provisions of this Agreement and all 

applicable laws and agrees to perform the Services on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

The City reserves the right to omit any of the Services identified in Exhibit A upon written notice 

to Contractor. In the event of any conflict between this Agreement and Exhibit A, the provisions 

of this Agreement shall prevail. 

 

2. Compensation. Contractor agrees to perform the Services for the City free of labor 

charges.  The City agrees that any expenditure made by Contractor in furtherance of the Services  shall 

be subject to pre-approval by the Acting City Administrator. The City anticipates paying for any 

necessary expenses such as advertising, postage, test materials, etc. 

 

3. Term. The Term of this Agreement shall be from the date first written above through 

the date a new City Administrator is selected and approved by the City Council. 

 

4. Outside Support Services and Sub-Contractor. Any sub-Contractors shall be pre- 

approved by the City. 

 

5. Ownership of Instruments of Service. The City acknowledges the Contractor's 

work product, including electronic files, as instruments of professional service. Nevertheless, the 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 129 of 135



 

 

final work product prepared under this Agreement shall become the property of the City upon 

completion of the services and payment in full of all monies due to the Contractor. 

 

6. Monitoring and Evaluation. The City reserves the right to monitor and evaluate 

the progress and performance of Contractor to ensure that the terms of this Agreement are being 

satisfactorily met in accordance with the City's and other applicable monitoring and evaluating 

criteria and standards. Contractor shall cooperate with the City relating to such monitoring and 

evaluation. 

 
7. Independent Contractor. The parties agree that the Contractor shall be an independent 

contractor and shall not be an employee, agent, or servant of the City. Contractor is not entitled to 

workers' compensation benefits from the City and is obligated to pay federal and state income tax on 

any money earned pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

8. Insurance Requirements. Contractor shall be responsible for its own independent 

general liability insurance, automobile insurance, worker's compensation, and any other insurance 

necessary to perform the duties contemplated by this Agreement and  shall  indemnify and hold 

harmless the City from any acts attributable to Contractor's  negligence for which  the  City may be 

held liable not covered by the City's insurance. 

 

9. Indemnification. Contractor hereby covenants and agrees to indemnify, save, and 

hold harmless the City, its officers, employees, and agents from any and all liability, loss, costs, 

charges, obligations, expenses, attorney's fees, litigation, judgments, damages, claims, and 

demands of any kind whatsoever arising from or out of any negligent act or omission or other 

tortious conduct of Contractor, its officers, employees, or agents in the performance or 

nonperformance of its obligations under this Agreement. 

 

I 0. Termination. 

 
a. Generally. 

 
(i) The City may terminate this Agreement without cause if it determines that 

such termination is in the City's best interest. The City shall effect such termination by giving written 

notice of termination to Contractor, specifying the effective date of termination, at least thirty (30) 

calendar days prior to the effective date of termination. In  the  event  of  such termination by the City, 

the City shall be liable to pay Contractor for Services performed as of the effective date of termination, 

but shall not be liable to Contractor  for  anticipated  profits. Contractor shall not perform any 

additional Services following receipt of the notice of termination unless otherwise instructed in 

writing by the City. 

 

(ii) Contractor may terminate this Agreement without cause  if  it  determines that 

such termination is in Contractor's best interest. Contractor shall effect such termination by giving 

written notice of termination to the City, specifying the effective date of termination,  at  least sixty 

(60) calendar days prior to the effective date of termination. 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 130 of 135



 

 
 

b. For Cause. If, through any cause, Contractor fails to fulfill its obligations under 

this Agreement in a timely and proper manner, violates any provision of this Agreement, or 

violates any applicable law, and does not commence correction of such nonperformance or 

violation within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of written notice and diligently complete the 

correction thereafter, the City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for cause 

immediately upon written notice of termination to Contractor. Contractor shall not perform any 

additional Services following receipt of the notice of termination. 

 
13. Responsibilities. The Contractor shall be responsible for all damages to persons or 

property caused by the Contractor, its agents, employees or sub-Contractors, to  the extent caused by 

its negligent acts, errors and omissions hereunder, and shall indemnify and hold harmless the City 

from any claims or actions brought against Contractor by reason thereof. 

 
14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, along with any addendums and attachments 

hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. The provisions  of  this  Agreement may 

be amended at any time by the mutual consent of both parties.  The  parties  shall  not  be bound by 

any other agreements, either written or oral, except as set forth in this Agreement. 

 

15. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State 

of Colorado, and venue shall be in the County of Chaffee, State of Colorado. 

 

16. Governmental Immunity Act. No term or condition of this Agreement shall be 

construed or interpreted as a waiver, express or implied, of any of the immunities, rights, benefits, 

protections, or other  provisions  of the  Colorado Governmental  Immunity  Act, C.R.S. §§ 24-1O J 

OJ et seq. 

 

I 7. Assignability. Contractor shall not assign this Agreement without the City's prior written 

consent. 

 

I 8. Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding upon, and  shall  inure to the benefit 

of, the parties hereto and their respective heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns. 

 

19. Survival Clause. The "Indemnification" provision set forth in this Agreement shall 

survive the completion of the Services and the satisfaction, expiration, or termination of this 

Agreement. 

 

20. Severability. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this 

Agreement invalid or unenforceable, such holding shall  not  invalidate  or  render unenforceable any 

other provision of this Agreement. 

 

21. Headings. Paragraph headings used in this Agreement are for convenience of reference 

and shall in no way control or affect the m.eaning or interpretation of any provision  of this Agreement. 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 131 of 135



22. Notices. Written notices required under this Agreement and all other correspondence

between the parties shall be directed to the following and shall  be  deemed received when hand-

delivered or three (3) days after being sent by certified mail, return receipt requested: 

 to the City: 

 to Contractor: 

 _____________ 

City of Salida 

448 E. 1 st Street, Suite 

112 P.O. Box 417 

Salida, CO 81201 

BCG Consulting group 

 c/o Harry Brull 

8157 Buck Run 

Salida, CO 8120 I 

23. Authority. Eacb person signing this Agreement, and any addendums  or attachments 
hereto, represents and warrants that said person is fully authorized to enter into and execute this 

Agreement and to bind the party it represents to the terms and conditions hereof. 

24. Attorneys' Fees. Should this Agreement become the subject of litigation  between the 
City and Contractor, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recovery of all actual costs in connection 

therewith, including but not limited to attorneys' fees and  expert witness  fees.  All rights concerning 

remedies and/or attorneys' fees shall survive any termination of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 

above written.

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

___

____________________________________________________ 

BCG Consulting group, LLP 

____________________________________________________

Harold P. Brull, Senior Vice President 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 132 of 135



Date: 

To: 

FROM: 

SUBJECJ': 

13 June 2018 

Mayor P.T. Woods 

 City of Salida, 

Colorado 

Harry Brull, 

Senior Partner, BCG Consulting Group 

City Administrator Recruitment and Selection 

Thank you for your interest in BCG Consulting Group’s services to help Salida recruit and select 

its next City Administrator. The attached proposal outlines a suggested process and timeline. I have 

also included cost figures; however, as a member of the Salida community, I offer to waive all labor costs. 

Please note that we have submitted a "Soup to Nuts" proposal. We are open to any activity for 

which the City wishes to assume responsibility. We fully support, once we mutually agree on a 

process, to a full partnership where responsibility is shared. 

Ours approach is based upon the premise that the challenge for this level is selection rather than 

search. City administrator candidates are easily located. The primary value of using external 

professionals is ensuring the municipality incurs "no surprises." Since 1978, when I conducted the 

process that resulted in Tony Bouza becoming Minneapolis' first outside chief, we hve assessed the 

capabilities of over a thousand candidates for key municipal positions. 

Recently, we assisted  the city of Tempe, Arizona in their recruitment and  selection processes for all 

municipal division heads.. Please see list of references for these and other similar projects. 

Using BCG Consulting group to assist the City for this process brings the following features and benefits: 

• Ability to gain an in-depth understanding of the job's leadership requirements

• Ability to accurately assess the capabilities of candidates

• Experience with a wide range of municipalities and positions.

• Flexibility - working cooperatively with the city to allocate responsibility

• Ability to actively involve city staff - assisting the new Administrator in effectively leading

the staff.

• Capability of comparing internal and external candidate qualifications

I look forward to helping the City of Salida. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me 

at 612.414.8998 or Harry@bcgconsultinggroup.com. 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 133 of 135

mailto:Harry@bcgconsultinggroup.com.


  " 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 134 of 135



CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 35 

(Series of 2018) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO, 

TERMINATING LARRY LORENTZEN AS CITY ADMINISTRATOR FOR THE CITY OF 

SALIDA 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council is no longer satisfied with the City Administrator’s performance 

of his job responsibilities, and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City administrator have attempted to reach mutually agreeable  

terms for a separation agreement, but have been unable to reach such an agreement, 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SALIDA, COLORADO THAT: 

 

 Section 1.  The City Council hereby terminates the employment of Larry Lorentzen as City 

Administrator.  

 

 

 RESOLVED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this _____ of ___________, 2018. 

 

CITY OF SALIDA, COLORADO 

 

 

 

By:       

 P.T. Wood, Mayor 

[SEAL] 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:        

 City Clerk/Deputy City Clerk 

June 19, 2018 Regular Meeting Packet 
Page 135 of 135


	Agenda
	Reports and Correspondence
	a) E911 Monthly Budget Report for April
	Revenues & Expenditures
	Payments


	Presentations
	a) Chaffee County Economic Development Corporation
	Letter from Wendell Pryor


	VI.1 Consent Agenda
	b) Minutes for June 5, 2018
	c) Approving Sanitary Sewer Extension Agreement
	Request for Council Action
	Index Sheet

	d) Approving Dominion Voting Equipment Rental Agreement
	Exhibit A Pricing Summary

	e) Scout Hut Final Settlement
	Request for Council Action
	Notice of Final Settlement
	Project Acceptance Form
	Punch LIst
	Grand Opening

	f) Crest Crank Special Even Permit
	Appllication for Special Evens Permit


	VI.2 A Church Special Event Liquor Application
	Council Action Request
	Letter from Sheree Beddingfield
	Application fro Special Events Permit
	Floor Plan showing area for serving alcohol
	Memo from Building Official Dan Swallow
	2017 Memo from Dan Swallow
	Building Plans

	VI.3 Resolution 2018-30  Recreation Advisory Board Appointments
	Request for Council Action
	Resolution 2018-30

	VI.4. Resolution 2018-31 Approving Fee Schedule for Short Term Rental Licenses
	Request for Council Action
	Resolution 2018-31
	Exhibit A -  Fee Schedule


	VI.5. Resolution 2018-32 Ballot Language for Sales Tax Distribuiton to ED Fund
	Request for Council Action
	Resolution 2018-32

	VI.6  Resolution 2018-33 Approving MOU with Community Builders
	Request for Council Action
	Resolution 2018-33
	MOU

	VI.7 Resolution 2018-34 Approving Executive Search Services Agreement with BCG Consulting Group
	Professional Service Agreement 

	VI.8 Resolution 2018-35 Terminating Larry Lorentzen as City Administrator



